
SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp

SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorp SICorpSICorp

SICorp

SICorp

SICorp

SICorp

SICorp

SICorp

SICorp

SICorp

SICorp

NSW SELF INSURANCE 
CORPORATION

Annual Report
2013 - 14

SICorp
NSW Self Insurance Corporation



© Crown in right of New South Wales through the NSW Self Insurance Corporation (SICorp) 2014. You may 
copy, distribute, display, download and otherwise freely deal with this work for any purpose, provided that you 
attribute SICorp as the owner.

However you must obtain permission if you wish to;
(1) charge others for access to the work (other than at cost)
(2) include the work in advertising or a product for sale or
(3) modify the work.

Any inquiries relating to consents and use of this publication, including by NSW Government Agencies, must 
be addressed to the Communications Team.

ISSN: 1834-1950



The Hon. Dominic Perrottet MP
Minister for Finance and Services
52 Martin Place
Sydney NSW 2000

Dear Minister Perrottet

I am pleased to submit the Annual Report of the NSW Self Insurance Corporation (SICorp) 
for the financial year ended 30 June 2014, for presentation to the Parliament of New South 
Wales in accordance with the Annual Reports (Statutory Bodies) Act 1984, Section 11.

Yours sincerely

Steve Hunt 
Director
NSW Self Insurance Corporation
  
31 October 2014

John Hubby
Acting Chief Executive
Office of Finance and Services

31 October 2014





5

NSW Self Insurance Corporation - Annual Report 2013 - 14

Contents
ABOUT SICORP
SICorp 6
Charter  6
Mission Statement 6
Core Values 7
Corporate Objectives 7
Services 7
SICorp Advisory Board 7
Agencies 8
Statement of Cover 8
TMF Contributions 9
Working with Agencies 10 
Guarantee of Service 11
Organisational Structure  
and Governance Arrangements  13

OUR PERFORMANCE
Key Achievements for 2013-14 14
Contract and Performance Management 14
Home Warranty Insurance 16
Risk Management 16
Program Office 17
Communication and Client Services 17
Information Management 18
Reinsurance 18
Principal Arranged Insurance 19

FUTURE CHALLENGES
Contract and Performance Management 20
Home Warranty Insurance 20
Risk Management 21
Communication and Client Services 22
Information Management 22
Principal Arranged Insurance 22

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Independent Auditor’s Report 24
Financial Statements 27

APPENDIX
Accounts Payable Performance 70
Internal Audit and Risk Management  71 
Digital Information Security Annual Attestation 73 
Expenditure on Consultants 74
Credit Card Certification 75
Government Information (Public Access) Act  75
Proactive Release Program 77
NABERS Energy Rating Certificate 78
NABERS Water Rating Certificate 79
Energy Management 80
Internet and Intranet Access 80
Publications 80
Legislation 80
Privacy Management Plan 80
Public Interest Disclosure 81
Reducing Paper Consumption and Waste 81
Resource Recovery 81
Using Recycled Material 81
Waste Reduction and Purchasing Policy 81
SICorp Staff 81
Overseas Visits 82
TMF Community 82
Memberships 83
Statutory Reporting Requirements Index 86 
Websites Referenced in this Report 86
Acronyms and Abbreviations 86
Index 87

Access
NSW Self Insurance Corporation (SICorp)

Level 17, 201 Elizabeth Street,  
Sydney NSW 2000
Phone: 02 9228 3829
Fax: 02 9228 3870

Web: www.sicorp.nsw.gov.au

Postal Address

PO Box A2615, Sydney South, NSW 1235

31 October 2014
ISSN: 1834-1950

External Costs

No external costs were incurred for the production 
of this report.

Report Access

This report is available on the NSW Self Insurance 
Corporation (SICorp) website:  
www.sicorp.nsw.gov.au



6

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

ABOUT SICORP

SICorp
The NSW Self Insurance Corporation (SICorp) is a statutory body that operates under the NSW Self 
Insurance Corporation Act 2004.

SICorp’s main function is to operate the NSW Government’s managed fund schemes. The main scheme 
known as the Treasury Managed Fund (TMF) provides unmatched protection for all asset and liability 
exposures (except Compulsory Third Party [CTP] motor vehicle insurance) for most general government 
Agencies and a number of other Agencies. 

During 2012-13 the Government mandated that all Agencies, other than electricity generators and suppliers, 
consult with SICorp with a view to joining the TMF for the 2013-14 fund year. To date, some Transport 
Agencies still operate outside of the TMF.

Since private insurers vacated the market in July 2010, SICorp has also underwritten home warranty 
insurance and manages the Home Warranty Insurance Fund (HWIF).

In May 2012, SICorp commenced providing Principal Arranged Insurance (PAI) to all government 
Agencies undertaking capital works projects with an estimated total cost of $10 million or more through the 
Construction Risks Insurance Fund.

In addition to the three active funds listed above, SICorp administers a number of closed government 
insurance schemes. These include the Governmental Workers Compensation Account (GWC), the 
Transport Accidents Compensation Fund (TAC), the Pre-Managed Fund Reserve, the Rail Scheme and 
Building Insurers’ Guarantee Corporation (BIG Corp). Activity and financial statements for BIG Corp will be 
reported separately in the BIG Corp Annual Report 2013-14 

SICorp also represents the interests of NSW Government on all insurance matters both state-wide and 
interstate.

On 1 July 2013, staff managing SICorp was transferred from NSW Treasury to become a division of the 
Office of Finance and Services (OFS).

Charter
SICorp was established by the NSW Self Insurance Corporation Act 2004.

SICorp:
• operates a number of Government insurance managed fund schemes including the TMF
• provides home warranty insurance for building work under the Home Building Act 1989 through the 

HWIF
• provides PAI for capital works projects estimated to cost $10 million or more through the Construction 

Risks Insurance Fund.

The TMF provides broad protection to all general government sector Agencies and a number of  
non-budget Agencies for their asset and liability exposures (except CTP motor vehicle insurance).

The TMF is an arrangement under which workers compensation, public and other liabilities, property, motor 
vehicle accident (not CTP) and miscellaneous covers for TMF Agencies are managed as a self insurance 
scheme (including the collection of contributions from TMF Agencies towards the cost of claims).

SICorp actively promotes strong risk management to both Agencies and our service providers in order to 
minimise claims.

Mission Statement
SICorp’s mission is to support a stronger NSW economy and better public services through our management 
of the Government’s self-insured liabilities.
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Core Values
Acting with integrity
Valuing the individual
Focusing on our stakeholders
Providing leadership at all levels
Continuously learning and innovating.

Corporate Objectives
SICorp’s overall objective is to improve the financial position of the NSW Government by working with 
Agencies to achieve the following:
• Maintain a fully funded position
• Minimise State risk exposures
• Optimise the accountability of Agencies and service providers
• Provide efficient and cost effective delivery of all services
• Reduce claims costs and budget impacts.

Services
SICorp delivers efficient and cost effective services by:
• Ensuring accurate data is maintained
• Maintaining high levels of service through effective performance monitoring and measurement
• Promoting and facilitating knowledge sharing between stakeholders and service providers
• Providing reporting on claims performance
• Securing value for money services from all service providers.

SICorp Advisory Board

Purpose and Operations

The SICorp Advisory Board provides governance oversight, advice, and guidance to SICorp’s management 
team. As stipulated in the Board’s Charter, this governance role focuses on SICorp’s:

• objectives, strategies, and policies
• operating and investment performance
• principal operational risks and appropriate risk management.

The Board’s operations are in accordance with the NSW Government’s Board and Committee Guidelines.
The Board meets monthly.

Non-Executive Members

To further enhance the Board’s advisory function, on 31 March 2014 David Plumb, Vicki Allen, and  
Brian Greig were appointed as non-executive members to the SICorp Advisory Board. Their profiles can 
be found on page 85.

Appointed for a three-year term, the new non-executive members joined executive members Steve Hunt 
(Director of SICorp) and John Hubby (Acting CEO of the Office of Finance and Services) as members of 
the SICorp Advisory Board.
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Agencies
SICorp, through the TMF, provides broad protection for all asset and liability exposures (except CTP) to 
participating Government Agencies.

The structure of the TMF was independently reviewed in 1995 following significant increases in the costs of 
claims, particularly workers compensation. The review clearly indicated that a managed fund arrangement 
remained the preferred option for enabling Agencies to manage their risks. The review also reinforced the 
principle of active risk management practices by Agencies in order to control cost.

In July 2005, SICorp, on behalf of NSW Treasury, restructured the management of the TMF to a  
multi-provider model to protect the TMF against the inherent risks of a single provider and ensure the 
highest level of performance for the TMF. 

This model continues to promote competition within the commercial market to ensure that Agencies receive 
high-quality services from all the contracted service providers supporting the TMF.

Agencies are responsible for all their claims outcomes and claims costs as well as their risk management 
capability. The role of Agencies is to:
• conduct regular risk assessments and perform risk management tasks for all exposures
• implement appropriate risk identification measurements, mitigation and management procedures
• respond to incentive arrangements that are part of the scheme
• report on results.

As at 30 June 2014, SICorp provided services to 9 Principal Departments comprising, in total, 197 Agency 
entities.

Statement of Cover
The Statement of Cover represents the NSW Government’s policy response to loss or damage suffered by 
TMF Agencies and individuals in certain circumstances.

The extent of the cover provided by the TMF is unique to TMF Agencies. The TMF covers most types of 
loss or damage that TMF Agencies suffer and is considered superior in its cover to insurance products 
offered in the commercial insurance market.

Cover is provided for loss or damage incurred on or after 1 July 1989 or the date the Agency joined the 
TMF.

The TMF provides cover worldwide with respect to:
• liability, including, but not limited to, public liability, products liability, professional indemnity,  

directors / officers liability and medical negligence
• motor vehicle (excluding CTP)
• property (full replacement, new for old and consequential loss)
• workers compensation according to NSW statute
• miscellaneous losses, notably, due to employee dishonesty, personal accident and protection for 

overseas travel.
 
Exposures not included are:
• illegal activities
• pollution (not being sudden and accidental pollution)
• wear and tear and inherent vice.

The TMF is protected by a comprehensive reinsurance program.

The Statement of Cover is available on the SICorp website under “Publications”. 

The TMF is not subject to the Insurance Act 1973 (Cth) nor is it subject to the regulatory control of the 
Australian Prudential Regulation Authority.



9

NSW Self Insurance Corporation - Annual Report 2013 - 14

TMF Contributions
Contributions are made by TMF Agencies towards the cost of claims. The first step in setting contribution 
values is the calculation by actuaries of the target premium for a financial year. The target premium 
represents an estimate of total claims costs and expenses for the ensuing year. Estimates are reduced by 
expected investment earnings on contributions that accrue prior to claim payments.

The target premium is then allocated to Agencies as deposit contributions.

Deposit contributions are based on a weighting between an Agency’s own claims experience and an 
appropriate external premium measure. For workers compensation this is known as the industry benchmark 
premium. The sum of all deposit contributions will add to the total target premium for the TMF. The size of 
all lines of business by contributions and an indication of performance since 2003-04 is outlined below.

Contribution Indicators

Claims Managers provide information to Agencies about the calculation of deposit contributions, claims 
trends and drivers. They work in a collaborative manner to assist TMF Agencies to manage their exposure.

Size of All Lines of Business by Contributions (Excluding GST) 2013-14

Line of Business Premium (Excluding GST)

Workers Compensation $654,072,423

Liability $338,355,159

Property $86,112,520

Motor Vehicle $38,898,570

Miscellaneous $9,581,880

Total Contributions 2013-14 $1,127,020,552

Comparison - All Lines of Business Contributions 2013-14 and 2005-06  
(SICorp’s First Reporting Year)
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Contributions Performance Indicators (GST Exclusive)

Workers 
compensation 
– Premium as 

percentage of wages

Liability – (excluding 
VMOs) – premium 

per employee

Motor – premium per 
vehicle

Property – premium 
as percentage of 

asset value

2013-14 2.25% $1,024 $837 0.06%

2012-13 2.46% (1) $964 $847 0.06%

2011-12 (2) 2.73%  $932  $847 0.07%

2010-11 2.14%  $929  $881 0.08%

2009-10 1.90%  $909  $860 0.08%

2008-09 1.92%  $844  $849 0.09%

2007-08 2.31%  $857  $829 0.09%

2006-07 2.34%  $904  $809 0.10%

2005-06 2.83%  $988(3)  $830 0.12%

2004-05 2.92%  $1,096  $843 0.14%

2003-04 3.13%  $1,131  $864 0.14%

Note (1) Subject to monitoring the impact of the recent Workers Compensation changes:
The Workers Compensation Legislation Amendment Act 2012 that received assent on 27 June 2012. The Act made 
changes to workers benefits following the findings of a Joint Select Committee inquiry into the WorkCover Scheme, 
which released its final report on 13 June 2012. The changes focus on better meeting the needs of seriously injured 
workers, encouraging return to work wherever possible and ensuring the long term sustainability of the scheme. 
Changes were implemented from 19 June 2012 to 1 January 2013 with some changes still to be effected.

Note (2) Impact on workers compensation contribution due to Police death and disability scheme.

Note (3) From 2005-06 there was a positive impact to the liability portfolio as a result of Tort law reforms

Working with Agencies

TMF Agency Advisory Council

The TMF Agency Advisory Council (TMF AAC) serves as a consultative forum through which Agencies  
can provide feedback to SICorp on the operations, cover and services they receive under the TMF.

The Council

• Facilitates greater participation by Agencies in affecting the operations of the TMF
• Provides Agencies with a high level forum where issues impacting them can be discussed and 

information disseminated
• Requires that Agency representatives on the Advisory Council are to represent the interest of all TMF 

Agencies
• Reviews and fosters best practice across TMF Agencies
• Reviews and makes recommendations on issues affecting TMF performance
• Serves as a consultative forum through which TMF Agencies can provide feedback to the Claims 

Managers, third party service providers and SICorp.

Council members are recommended by SICorp and approved by the Chief Executive, OFS. Membership is 
comprised of seven senior executive representatives from Agencies holding a position with responsibilities 
for risk management, health and safety or workers compensation, a representative from the TMF 
Communities of Practice and the SICorp Director. For details of current TMF AAC members please see 
page 85.
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Service Level Agreement Working Groups

Service Level Agreement (SLA) Working Groups are representative of the broad spectrum of Agencies 
participating in the TMF. There is one working group for each Claims Manager.

These working groups review service delivery and service quality provided by the Claims Managers and 
any issues that arise. They meet four times per year.

For details of current SLA Working Group members please see page 86.

Guarantee of Service
SICorp has an outsourced business model and has strong contract performance controls to ensure that 
contracted service providers are meeting their obligations under the terms of their contracts. Service 
provision to the schemes managed by SICorp is determined by periodic tender for each contract. This 
arrangement ensures that SICorp consistently offers high-quality service and promotes innovation.

In late 2013, SICorp engaged ARTD Consultants to conduct an independent review of Agency satisfaction 
with Claims Managers as per the requirements of the TMF Claims Management Agreement – Critical 
Service Standard No.2. The results for all TMF Claims Managers continue to be above standards set in 
the contracts.

Stakeholder Map

 

THE TREASURY AND FINANCE CLUSTER

OFFICE OF FINANCE AND SERVICES

SICorp

GOVERNMENT Agencies NSW RESIDENTIAL  
BUILDERS

Reduce resources utilised for the purpose of fund-
ing loss, damage or liabilities

Greater resources available to provide services, 
facilities and infrastructure for the State
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damage and successfully manage claims.
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=

THE PEOPLE OF NSW

TCorp



12

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

SICorp Commitment to Stakeholders

SICorp’s outsourced service model uses large, well-established Australian-based companies to achieve 
the objective of minimising State exposures, claims cost and budget impacts; optimising the accountability 
of Agencies and delivering services in an efficient and cost effective manner.

Commitment to the Community
• Efficiently and effectively manage the government schemes under SICorp’s control including TMF, 

PAI and HWIF
• Provide access to accurate and timely information within SICorp’s statutory responsibilities.

Commitment to HWIF Consumers
• Administer the HWIF efficiently and effectively
• Provide relevant and accurate information in a timely manner.

Commitment to Office of Finance and Services
• Administer TMF and HWIF and other government schemes efficiently and effectively
• Provide professional advice
• Provide relevant and accurate information in a timely manner
• Work in partnership to achieve common goals.

Commitment to Agencies
• Administer all schemes efficiently and effectively
• Make SICorp’s objectives and expectations clear and provide written guidelines
• Provide relevant and accurate information in a timely manner
• Work in partnership to achieve common goals.
 
Commitment to SICorp Staff
• Provide strong leadership and manage effectively
• Strive to create job satisfaction and provide personal development and career opportunities.

Commitment to Service Providers
• Make SICorp’s objectives and expectations clear
• Provide relevant and accurate information in a timely manner
• Work in partnership to achieve common goals.
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Organisational Structure and Governance Arrangements
SICorp operates an outsourced service provider model. Our structure and functional teams have been 
designed to provide a strong focus on effectively managing the outsourced model within the terms of the 
NSW Self Insurance Act 2004.

Minister for  
Finance & Services

Information 
Management

Contract 
Performance
(Including the  
Legal Panel)

Client 
Services

Reinsurance  
and  

Insurance 
Strategy

Risk 
Management 

Business 
Support 

Home 
Warranty

Strategic 
Projects

Construction 
Risk
(PAI)

SICorp Functional Teams

SICorp Governance

SICorp Advisory Board

Audit and Risk Committee 
(ARC)

Chief Executive Officer
Office of Finance & Services

 Director  
Self Insurance Corporation

(SICorp)

Note: SICorp transferred to the Office of Finance and Services on 1 July 2013. 
The chart above indicates SICorp’s structure and governance arrangements as at 1 July 2014.

As at 30 June 2014, SICorp utilises 42 full-time equivalent staff across all of its functional teams. 

Five additional FTE were approved in May 2014 and will be included in the reporting in 2014-15
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OUR PERFORMANCE
Key Achievements for 2013-14
• The total cost of TMF claims for 2013-14 was $96 million less than the total cost of claims for 2012-13
• Net payment to the Consolidated Fund of $905 million in FY 2013-14 due to surplus funds in the TMF 

driven by strong investment performance of the TMF Hour-Glass Facility.
• SICorp successfully renewed their Reinsurance placement with the international market, ensuring a 

reduction in cost to Government of $898,000 and increasing cover across all lines of business to 100% 
capacity.

• 2013 TMF Conference and Awards for Excellence attracted a record number of award applicants and 
conference attendees which highlighted SICorp’s growing role in building risk management capability 
across the public sector.

• The TMF Legal Panel was successfully implemented creating transparency and accountability in the 
performance of legal services and the costs associated with the provision of that service. 

• Home Warranty Insurance Fund assisted 520 NSW home owners with claims worth an estimated $24.5 
million.

Contract and Performance Management
SICorp has a specialised contract performance management team dedicated to managing the contracted 
service providers which support SICorp’s various lines of business.

SICorp’s Account Managers are key contacts for managing the relationship with the Claims Managers and 
Insurance Agents. Account Managers have primary responsibility for monitoring performance and delivery 
of the services and commitments under the agreements.

The Manager Performance Analysis is responsible for developing reports that measure the performance of  
Claims Managers’ and other analysis of the TMF environment.

SICorp’s contract and performance management framework aims to ensure that the delivery of services 
meet the standards specified in the service management agreements.

Actuarial Service Provider Tender

In 2013-14 SICorp began working towards the conclusion of the 2009-14 Actuarial Service Provider 
Contract on 30 September 2014. After analysing the structure of the current contract and consulting with 
Agencies, SICorp redesigned the service provision model and went to tender. 

The new actuarial services model has been changed from two generalist providers to four  providers with a 
specialist focus. This change in the model is designed to:
• spread SICorp’s business across a number of providers to mitigate the risk of reliance on a single 

provider
• focus the service provision of the provider to the various needs of SICorp’s different business lines 
• develop providers within the industry
• promote competition and innovation between the different service providers
• ensure quality of service and value for money.

The Request for Tender (RFT) was released in May 2014 with the new providers scheduled to start  
1 October 2014.
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New Actuarial Services Model

Actuarial 
Service  
Provider

Benchmark and Peer Review
Actuarial 

Service Provider

Current Actuarial  
Services Model

PwC

Taylor Fry

Role 1.
 General Lines and  
Principal Arranged  
Insurance Actuary

New Actuarial  
Services Model

Role 2.
 Workers Compensation  

Insurance Actuary

Role 3.
 Home Warranty  

Insurance Actuary

Role 4.
Peer Review Actuary

Claims Management Service Provider Tender

In February 2014 SICorp began preparations for the next claims management service provider contracts 
due to commence 1 July 2015. SICorp consulted with Agencies through open forum sessions, online 
survey and engagement with cluster heads. The feedback gained through this consultation will inform the 
drafting of a Request for Tender (RFT) due to be released in November 2014.

TMF Legal Services Panel

The TMF Legal Services Panel has been in operation for 12 months. The overriding aim of the panel is to 
provide value for money legal services for the NSW Government and NSW taxpayers.

A legal management system called the NSW Legal Panel Gateway (LPG) has been implemented to assist 
in the management of the Panel. The LPG, utilised by the panel firms, Claims Managers and Agencies, 
allocates matters by each sub-panel on a rota system to panel law firms. Law firms are appointed to the 
Panel via a tender process. Compliance with the rota system is monitored by SICorp’s Panel Management  
Team and requests to override the rota are made the Team. Overrides are approved in exceptional 
circumstances.

There are 5 sub-panels – General Claims, Complex Claims, Employment, Protective Actions and Workers 
Compensation. There are 22 law firms across the sub-panels.

The Panel Management Team conducted the second round of quarterly performance reviews with all 
panel firms in late June 2014. The Team obtained feedback from Agencies and Claims Managers prior to 
conducting the performance reviews. The Panel Management also completed random audits of matters for 
each firm on each sub panel.
 
The Panel firms were allocated a star rating for the June quarter based on compliance with the Legal 
Services Deed and feedback from Agencies/Claims Managers. Feedback was provided to each panel firm 
in relation to their performance for the quarter to address any performance issues.
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Home Warranty Insurance
SICorp commenced issuing certificates of insurance as required under the Home Building Act 1989 from  
1 July 2010 through its appointed agents QBE Insurance (Australia) Limited (QBE) and Calliden Insurance 
Ltd (Calliden).

The activities of the management team during 2013-14 have included: 
• completing insurance agent audits for compliance with contracted requirements
• conducting two conferences for training insurance agents’ underwriters and a forum for major builders
• responding to significant claims activity.

As at 30 June 2014, SICorp has approved 15,812 builders for purchasing home warranty insurance in 
NSW. During 2013-14 financial assessments were carried out on 4,465 builders.

For the 12 months to 30 June 2014, claims activity resulted in 520 claims with a projected cost of  
$24.5 million.

The financial statements for the HWIF have been prepared on a going concern basis. The fund is able to pay 
its current known debts as and when they fall due. It is expected that the ultimate cost of claims will exceed 
the premium earnings in the medium term. Options to address the medium and long term sustainability are 
under consideration by the NSW Government. There are no immediate cash flow deficiencies impacting 
the fund.

Detailed information on the scope of the protection provided by home warranty policies issued by SICorp, 
administration procedures, half-year operational reports and documentation is provided on the website 
www.homewarranty.nsw.gov.au

Risk Management
SICorp’s Risk Management team’s core role is to protect the strategic objectives of SICorp by ensuring that TMF 
agencies have access to the relevant risk management skills, knowledge, information, expertise, tools, programs 
and confidence to better understand and manage their organisational risks and thus prevent and/or minimise any 
adverse impact to the TMF.

The ongoing challenge with SICorp’s risk management function has been creating the correct balance of 
effort between internal demands of risk management/governance with the opportunities arising to significantly 
contribute to the development of risk management capability in the sector. 

In February 2014, an Advisory Board and Audit and Risk Committee commenced that, amongst other things, 
fundamentally raised the governance, risk management and compliance expectations of SICorp. The increased 
level of scrutiny was undertaken without a review of the required resources.

In June 2014, three roles were developed and approved to create a team under a Chief Operating Officer that will 
be fully focused on supporting SICorp’s internal operating requirements, including governance/risk management 
and compliance.  In turn, this will enable the recruitment of two vacant roles to work with the Chief Risk Officer, 
Risk Specialist Performance Insights and our strategic risk services provider to focus on our external risk 
management responsibilities.

Alignment with Objectives

Minimise state exposures by developing the risk management capability within NSW TMF agencies.
 
Reduce claim costs and budget impacts through detailed scheme analysis and reporting identifying 
current and emerging claims trends. 

Optimise the accountability of agencies and service providers by working with the NSW TMF Risk 
management Steering Committee to support the risk management practices of agencies. Additionally 
by providing subject matter expertise and direction to service providers, particularly the strategic risk 
management service provider.

Efficient and cost effective delivery of all services by developing the capability and capacity within SICorp 
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to effectively manage the operations of the business – with particular emphasis on governance/risk/
program management.

Maintain full funding of liabilities through claims analysis to identify data quality and completeness issues 
to support funding logistics.

2013 TMF Risk Management Conference and Awards for Excellence

The winners of the 2013 TMF Awards for Excellence were announced at a celebration event, held at the 
Australian Technology Park on 7 November 2013. The event was the culmination of the two-day TMF 
Risk Management Conference. The theme for this conference was “Manage Risk, Drive Performance” and 
covered a broad range of areas that targeted individuals across the public sector working in work safety, 
injury management and risk.

The annual awards program aimed to identify, recognise and celebrate leading risk management practice 
within TMF public sector Agencies. The event was well supported with over 340 delegates in attendance 
from Agencies and TMF service providers who acknowledged the work of the finalists and shared in the 
celebration.

A full list of the award winners can be found on page 84.

Program Office
In 2013-14 the program office focused on facilitating SICorp’s transfer from NSW Treasury to the OFS. All 
efforts were focused on setting up new systems and technologies so that SICorp could operate within the 
broader OFS corporate operating model. 

This program included:
• SAP finance system
• SAP human resources system
• New hardware to facilitate an eWorkplace program
• Digital records management project.

Cut-over to the new finance and human resources systems is scheduled to occur on 1 July 2014. The roll 
out of the eWorkplace initiatives and digital records management project is scheduled to occur across the 
2014-15 financial year.

Communication and Client Services

Communication and Marketing Project

In 2013-14 the Communication and Client Services team was involved in a review of all communication efforts 
across SICorp. The objective of this project was to investigate ways to raise the SICorp’s profile across all of our 
stakeholders and prompt the unique benefits of the Government managed fund schemes. 

The result of the analysis performed in this project is a program of work that will include:
• A new focus on brand building and strategic brand management
• An overhaul to the SICorp website to improve functionality and make communication faster and easier
• New processes and systems to support stakeholder engagement
• An investigation into increasing training opportunities through increased adoption of eLearning.

During the course of the project, the Communication and Client Services team consulted with SICorp’s clients 
and received advice from the former Office of Finance. This was documented to inform the future program of 
works. 

Client Consultation for Tenders

The Communication and Client Services team conducted consultations for the upcoming actuarial services 
and claims management services contracts. The consultations involved 113 of SICorp’s clients providing useful 
and valuable qualitative data. This feedback was circulated for the benefit of the organisation and our service 
providers. 
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The results of this consultation have been used to inform the service specification in the contracts due to 
commence in the next financial year. The consultation has also highlighted areas that could also be improved in 
the current contracts and SICorp has been working with service providers to makes these improvements.

Performance Intelligence Reporting Services

The need for more intensive reporting help was identified in the client consultation. Agencies require reporting on 
their claims and SICorp provides the infrastructure for that. A new support model to work with Claims Managers, 
actuaries and Agencies has been designed to improve information services to stakeholders while building 
capability within Agencies. 

Information Management
Information Communication Technology (ICT) provides an opportunity to improve SICorp’s productivity by 
making SICorp more efficient and streamlining processes and people’s interactions with SICorp.

SICorp’s ICT priorities include:
• Improving SICorp’s capability to meet its objectives
• Improving the efficiency and effectiveness of ICT operations
• Maintaining SICorp as the single source of truth of claims data.

Major achievements in 2013-14 include:
• Design and implementation of a disaster recovery solution
• Ongoing improvements to data quality
• Upgrade to Cognos 10
• Migration of IT infrastructure to new virtual technologies.

Reinsurance
SICorp, on behalf of the NSW Government, like commercial insurance companies and most other 
governments, purchases reinsurance for losses above their predetermined retention levels (or risk 
tolerances). Reinsurance helps to avoid the impact of financial losses associated with large catastrophic 
incidents.

SICorp, together with its reinsurance service provider, successfully negotiated the renewal of SICorp’s 
reinsurance program for 2013-14. All covers were placed at 100 per cent prior to the expiry of policies and 
signed lines were agreed by SICorp and advised to reinsurers prior to inception of cover for 2013-14. 

SICorp’s reinsurance protection is purchased through Australasian and European reinsurance markets, with 
increasing placements through Australia and Singapore.

Natural catastrophes, in particular bushfire and floods, remain the major topics of interest during reinsurance 
meetings. However, a softer reinsurance market and increased financial capacity resulted in SICorp’s renewal 
being achieved within expectation.

SICorp, in cooperation with a number of its service providers, makes annual updates to the reinsurance market 
with modelling results which indicate the limited scale of any likely losses and distinguish NSW Government risks 
from losses occurring in other Australian and overseas jurisdictions.

The 2013-14 Reinsurance ensured that adequate protection was in place to provide cover for the inclusion of 
Sydney Catchment Authority and Sydney Ports Corporation.
 
In January 2014, following an open tender, Jardine Lloyd Thompson (JLT Towers Re) were successfully appointed 
as SICorp’s reinsurance broker on a five-year contract.

Purchase of reinsurance represents prudent risk management and ensures that the NSW Government is not 
exposed to large scale loss. The reinsurance premium for 2013-14 equated to 3.5 percent of contributions and 
includes cover for $158 billion in declared assets providing protection against large and catastrophic events that 
could impact SICorp’s overall liabilities and government expenditure.
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The overall security of participating reinsurers was maintained. SICorp’s reinsurance purchase includes cover 
for damage or loss to all declared property assets due to terrorism and natural catastrophe including earthquake, 
fire and flood.

2013-14 Reinsurance program structure

AUD 3bn

AUD 1.2bn

AUD 710m

AUD 600m

AUD 430m AUD 430m
AUD 300m AUD 300m AUD 400m

Fine Arts

AUD 150m AUD 150m
AUD 100m

PCIP PCIP
Contract Professional AUD 60m AUD 60m
Works Indemnity

Risk Only**
AUD 20m AUD 30m AUD 100m AUD 10m AUD 25m AUD 10m AUD 10m AUD 25m AUD 25m AUD 100m AUD 25m AUD 10m AUD 25m AUD 10m AUD 2m

Notes:
*The Primary layer of the General Liability programme includes Medical Malpractice, Waste Liability, PCIP Liability and Directors' & Officers' Liability

MSIC

SELF INSURED RETENTION

Contract 
Works

Medical 
Malpractice

PCIP General 
Liability

**AUD 20m Retention applies to Property Risk losses, AUD 30m Retention applies per risk to Property Catastrophe losses

Sideways Net 
RetentionAUD 180m xs 

AUD 20m (50%) Director's & 
Officers 
Liability

Workers 
Compensation

Unlimited xs 
AUD 20m (50%) Property

Risk & Cat**

Terrorism Public, 
Products, Bush 

& Grassfire, 
Breach of Duty 
of Care, Waste 

Recycling 
Liability*

Marine 
Liability Aviation 

Liability

Principal Arranged Insurance
The release of Treasury Circular 12/11 mandated that all NSW Government Agencies other than SOCs  
place their PAI requirements through SICorp for all capital works projects estimated to cost $10 million 
or more. In 2013-14 SICorp and its service providers successfully placed material damage and liability 
insurance for the $6.8 billion North West Rail Link project. The cover achieved was for the life of the 
project and includes the transport of the tunnel boring machines essential for the delivery of this project. 
The placement of insurance by SICorp resulted in a saving for Government. 

SICorp has also provided comprehensive wording and insurance protection for a further $540 million of 
government construction projects across multiple Agencies.

SICorp continues to work closely with a range of Agencies to provide cover for construction projects.
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FUTURE CHALLENGES
Contract and Performance Management

Actuarial Services Contracts

The new actuarial services contracts will commence on 1 October 2014. Under the new actuarial contracts, 
the number of providers will increase from two to potentially four. SICorp will focus on the transition-in of 
new providers to ensure that all providers develop a good understanding of SICorp’s business requirements.

The contracts have been structured to ensure that core services provided are of quality and value. They 
also allow for flexibility to quickly address any challenges or changes that may occur throughout the  
five-year contract period.

Consultation with Agencies indicated that there was a need for timely, regular and flexible performance 
monitoring reports. This activity was formally provided by the primary actuary and has undergone significant 
improvements in the last financial year. To ensure continued improvement and value, SICorp has removed 
the role of monitoring from the new actuarial service provider contract and will focus a specialised service 
offering for performance monitoring. This service will be developed throughout 2014-15. 

Claims Management Services Provider Tender

The significant activity for the Contract Performance team in 2014-15 will be the release and evaluation 
of the Claims Management service provider tender. While these contracts do not commence until  
1 July 2015, the size and complexity of the service offering requires considerable effort to implement.

TMF Legal Service Panel

As active legal matters being managed on the Legal Panel Gateway continue to be resolved, SICorp 
will analyse the cost drivers of legal services to NSW Government. This analysis will form the basis of 
continuous improvement requirements for all contracted panel providers and provide direction as to where 
additional savings could be made. 

Home Warranty Insurance
The Home Warranty Insurance team have two main focus areas in 2014-15.

Amendments to the Home Building Act 1989 (administered by NSW Fair Trading) passed by Parliament 
in June 2014 will, on commencement, directly impact on the services and cover offered under the Home 
Warranty Insurance Fund. Some of those amendments include:

• Changing the name of the Home Warranty Insurance Fund to the Home Building Compensation Fund 
to better reflect the intention of the cover

• Preventing owner-builders from obtaining Home Warranty Insurance
• Clarifications on the levels and terms of cover
• Improved access to insurance in the case of insolvency of a member of a licensed partnership. 

Once the amendments (including an accompanying regulation) commence, SICorp will need to reflect the 
changes in its operations.

The Home Warranty Insurance team are also implementing a significant program of works to improve 
operations while reducing the costs of offering home warranty cover. A new technology solution will be 
implemented to streamline the issuing of cover and management of any claims that arise. This centralised 
solution will remove inefficiencies in the builder eligibility, distribution and claims management processes 
while improving services to NSW builders and home owners.
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Risk Management
The Risk Management team will have a dual focus in 2014-15 with continued services being offered to 
Agencies, but with increased focus on internal risk management and compliance within SICorp.

SICorp is implementing the OFS compliance framework to improve transparency and the monitoring of 
compliance requirements. The team will continue to support the SICorp Audit and Risk Committee (ARC) 
established following SICorp’s transfer to OFS.

Priorities 2014–15
1. Progress the approval and recruitment of internal resources and overall role description review of all 

SICorp roles
2. SICorp Advisory Board risk management workshop and refinement of SICorp’s risk register
3. Review of SICorp compliance and business continuity plans
4. Provide management responses and plans of action for internal audits–organisation change, 

procurement and claims provider management.
5. Draft strategic risk services tender approach including review of incentive review proposal
6. Progress the sector-wide risk management paper/strategy
7. Implement the revised communities of practice including terms of references and resourcing 

requirements
8. Draft a risk management capability set with NSW Public Service Commission
9. Review SICorp requirements for NSW Public Sector Workforce Health & Strategy 
10. Work with NSW Treasury in reviewing the Internal Audit and Risk Management Policy (TPP 0905)
11. Develop a funding model for projects identified via scheme analysis

Program Office

2014-15 will see the implementation of many initiatives that commenced in the previous fund year.

HR and Finance SAP implementation
From 1 July 2014, SICorp moves to its own instance of SAP for human resources management. While 
general support services around human resources are offered to SICorp through the OFS corporate 
operating model, this system allows SICorp staff to manage day-to-day human resources operational 
issues. It provides SICorp with more opportunities to customise the system and allows for greater reporting.

SICorp also migrates over to its own instance of SAP to support its financial operations. Until the cut-
over on 1 July 2014, SICorp operated under the financial system of NSW Treasury. SAP allows SICorp to 
customise the system to better support the requirements of SICorp’s business while quickly incorporating 
SICorp’s financial position into the broader OFS financial management system. 

SAP will have additional functionality, including project management and procurement management 
modules, enabling SICorp to automate a number of manual processes.

eWorkplace
In 2014-15, SICorp will implement the eWorkplace program being driven by the OFS. This program is being 
rolled out to a number of divisions of OFS in anticipation of an activity-based working initiative.

The implications for SICorp include:
• The roll out of highly portable laptops to all permanent staff within SICorp
• Implementation of wi-fi in all work spaces to enable a mobile workforce
• Migration from the GroupWise email system to MS Outlook.
 
Digital Records Management project
Consistent with the OFS policy for working digitally, SICorp will start utilising the TRIM electronic records 
keeping system in 2014-15. The move from paper-based to digital records marks a significant change in 
the way SICorp manages its records.
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Communication and Client Services

Program of Works

Following the Communications and Marketing Project completed in 2013-14, the Communication and Client 
Services team will be undertaking a program of works focusing on three main areas:
• Brand development and strategic brand management
• Improved communication through the SICorp website
• Better stakeholder engagement and management.

The Communication and Client Services team and the Information Management team are investigating the IT 
solutions to support these three areas. The team is also working with the Contract Performance team to ensure 
that provisions to support all communication and service activity are included in the next Claims Management 
Services contract. 

The 25th Anniversary of the TMF

In 2014-15 the TMF will be celebrating its 25th anniversary. This celebration will be held in conjunction with the 
annual TMF Awards for Excellence with an event scheduled on 12 November 2014.

Events and seminars will be held throughout 2014-15 to commemorate this anniversary. 

Information Management
2014-15 will be a year of high activity for the Information Management team as they prepare for the Claims 
Management Service Provider transition commencing 1 July 2015. 

The team is analysing the ITC requirements of both the transition of claims between service providers and the 
IT infrastructure required to support new or improved services within the new contract. A program of works has 
been developed focusing on three areas:

• Data Governance – this is focused on moving data quality activities into the data warehouse for faster and 
more accurate assessment of the data being submitted by service providers. This will enable SICorp to more 
effectively measure and manage the quality of the data being collected by Claims Managers and will tie into 
critical service standards in the contracts.

• Communication and stakeholder management – this project will look into how information is managed 
across the multitude of stakeholders within SICorp’s outsourced provider model and assist in streamlining 
information delivery and stakeholder management. Key to this project is the ability to quickly identify various 
stakeholder groups so that information delivery, communication and training can be targeted to their roles 
and areas of interest.

• Agency Performance Intelligence – this project will look at the formats with which data is delivered to 
Agencies and supporting them to convert that data into information that will inform the decision-making 
process within their own organisation. This project will also define how this process will be coordinated and 
supported within the new Claims Management service provider contracts.

Principal Arranged Insurance
In 2014-15, SICorp and JLT Towers Re will be introducing the CEECAT system for NSW Agencies seeking to get 
cover for all construction risk. This online system will allow Agencies to register their capital works projects in a 
central repository and automatically generate project specific documents.



23FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

Financial Statements 
for the year ended 30 June 2014

New South Wales
Self Insurance  

Corporation

SICorp
NSW Self Insurance Corporation



24 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14



25FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14



26 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Pursuant to Sections 41C (1B) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, I declare that in my opinion: 

1. The accompanying financial statements exhibit a true and fair view of the NSW Self Insurance 
Corporation’s financial performance for the year ended 30 June 2014 and financial position as at  
30 June 2014; and 

2. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Public Finance 
and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2010, the requirements of the Financial 
Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General Government Sector 
Entities or issued by the Treasurer and applicable Australian Accounting Standards. 

Further, I am not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the 
financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

John Hubby
Acting Chief Executive
Office of Finance and Services
18 September 2014
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New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Statement of Financial Position
Statement of Changes in Equity
Statement of Cash Flow

Notes to the Financial Statements

Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Note 2 Expenses
Note 3 Revenue
Note 4 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Note 5 Current/ Non-Current Assets - Receivables
Note 6 Financial Assets at Fair Value
Note 7 Plant and Equipment
Note 8 Intangible Assets
Note 9 Other Non-Current Assets
Note 10 Payables
Note 11 Current/ Non-Current Liabilities - Provision
Note 12 Other Current/ Non-Current Liabilities
Note 13 Reconciliation of net cash flows from operating activities to net result
Note 14 Statement of Comprehensive Income of Funds
Note 15 Statement of Financial Position for Funds
Note 16 Commitments for Expenditure - Lease Commitments
Note 17 Budget Review
Note 18 Contingent Liabilities
Note 19 Financial Instruments
Note 20 Events after the Reporting Date
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New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
for the year ended 30 June 2014

  Actual Budget Actual
Notes 2014 2014 2013

 $’000 $’000 $’000

Expenses excluding losses
Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses 2(a) 1,186,079 1,380,186 1,312,964 
Personnel services fees 5,229 7,924 5,358 
Depreciation and amortisation 2(b) 139 205 183 
Grants and subsidies 2(c) 920,000 10,000 215,000 
Finance costs 2(d) 322,225 315,268 304,632 
Total Expenses excluding losses 2,433,672 1,713,583 1,838,137 

Revenue
Sale of goods and services 3(a) 1,429,194 1,458,623 1,280,243 
Investment revenue 3(b) 1,037,216 540,615 1,223,473 
Grants and contributions 2(c) 15,000 - 10,000 
Other revenue 8 2 8 
Total Revenue 2,481,418 1,999,240 2,513,724 

Net Result 47,747 285,657 675,587 

Other comprehensive income - - -
 

Total comprehensive income 47,747 285,657 675,587 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2014

 Actual Budget Actual
Notes 2014 2014 2013

$’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 4 322,645 547,275 587,389 
Receivables 5 172,598 170,370 159,741 
Total Current Assets 495,243 717,645 747,130 

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 5 180,696 200,386 185,774 
Financial assets at fair value 6 7,164,671 7,107,350 6,531,305 
Plant and Equipment 7 62 177 136 
Intangible assets 8 62 127 127 
Other Non-Current Assets 9 12 7 13 
Total Non-Current Assets 7,345,504 7,308,047 6,717,355 
Total Assets 7,840,747 8,025,692 7,464,485 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 10 170,142 160,218 150,261 
Provisions 11 969,215 997,715 1,024,362 
Other 12 35,379 24,688 22,327 
Total Current Liabilities 1,174,736 1,182,621 1,196,950 

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 11 5,659,706 5,377,127 5,342,886 
Other 12 175,942 402,261 142,032 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 5,835,648 5,779,388 5,484,918 
Total Liabilities 7,010,384 6,962,009 6,681,868 

Net Assets 830,364 1,063,683 782,617 

EQUITY
Accumulated funds 830,364 1,063,683 782,617 
Total Equity 830,364 1,063,683 782,617 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2014

   
Accumulated 

 Funds
$’000

Balance at 1 July 2013 782,617 

Net Result for the year 47,747 
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 47,747 

Transfers with owners in their capacity as owners -

Balance at 30 June 2014 830,364 

Balance at 1 July 2012 107,030 

Net Result for the year 675,587 
Other comprehensive income -
Total comprehensive income for the year 675,587 

Transfers with owners in their capacity as owners -

Balance at 30 June 2013 782,617 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Statement of Cash Flow
for the year ended 30 June 2014

  Actual Budget Actual
Notes 2014 2014 2013

 $’000 $’000 $’000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments
Grants and subsidies 2(c) (920,000) (10,000) (215,000)
Other (1,229,407) (1,498,578) (1,506,789)
Total Payments (2,149,407) (1,508,578) (1,721,789)

Receipts
Sale of goods and services 1,465,813 1,466,078 1,568,493 
Interest received 3(b) 20,707 2,388 2,615 
Investment income 3(b) 430,755 305,114 281,354 
Grants and contribution 2(c) 15,000 - 231,000 
Other - 149,757 39,763 
Total Receipts 1,932,275 1,923,337 2,123,225 

NET CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING  
ACTIVITIES 13 (217,132) 414,759 401,436 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of Investment 718,862 - 99,487 
Purchases of Plant and Equipment - (90) (38)
Purchases of investments (766,474) (421,950) (472,189)
Other - (61) -
NET CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (47,612) (422,101) (372,740)

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH (264,744) (7,342) 28,696 

Opening cash and cash equivalents 587,389 554,617 558,693 

CLOSING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 4 322,645 547,275 587,389
 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.



32 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

 (a) Reporting Entity

The NSW Self Insurance Corporation (SICorp) is a statutory body that provides self-insurance 
coverage for most of the general government sector and a number of state owned corporations 
that have elected to join the scheme. SICorp also provides home warranty insurance outside 
the NSW public sector and principal arranged insurance for major capital projects undertaken 
by or on behalf of the State. Its main business address is at Level 17, 201 Elizabeth Street 
Sydney NSW 2000.

SICorp operates under the NSW Self Insurance Corporation Act 2004, and the Public Finance 
and Audit Act 1983. It is a not-for-profit entity which includes all the assets, liabilities, rights and 
obligations of the following funds: 

• NSW Treasury Managed Fund 
• Pre-Managed Fund Reserve
• Governmental Workers Compensation Account 
• Transport Accidents Compensation Fund 
• Residual Workers Compensation Liabilities of the Crown
• Home Warranty Insurance Fund
• Principal Arranged Insurance. 

NSW Treasury Managed Fund (TMF)

The TMF is SICorp’s main self-insurance scheme that protects the insurable assets and 
exposures of: 

• most general government sector Agencies 
• various statutory authorities.

Pre-Managed Fund Reserve (PMF)

The PMF holds the reserves previously held in the Fire Risks Account, the Fidelity Fund and 
the Public Liability Fund. It has been used to fund claims incurred by the NSW Government 
before 1 July 1989 including workers compensation claims. 

The PMF is not separately identified in the financial statements, but it is aggregated into the 
TMF.

Governmental Workers Compensation Account (GWC)

The GWC pays the outstanding workers compensation claims liabilities as at 30 June 1989 
of the:

• Consolidated Revenue Fund
• Public Hospitals
• Road and Traffic Authority Managed Fund.

From 1 July 1989, the TMF has administered workers compensation insurance for these 
Agencies. 
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Transport Accidents Compensation Fund (TAC)

The TAC pays for motor transport accident claims under the common law system which applied until 
30 June 1987 and TransCover system claims costs from then until 30 June 1989. The Motor Accidents 
Scheme replaced TransCover from 1 July 1989.

Residual Workers Compensation Liabilities of the Crown (SRA/RIC)

Residual workers compensation liabilities include those from the former State Rail Authority of NSW 
(SRA) and Rail Infrastructure Corporation (RIC).

The liabilities of the SRA were initially vested to the Crown Finance Entity pursuant to amendments 
to the Transport Administration Act 1988 (TAA) that provided for the restructuring of the Rail 
Industry. The liabilities of RIC were transferred to the Crown Finance Entity following section 94 and  
Order No. 2008-01 of the TAA which took effect from 1 October 2008. SICorp was appointed the Claims 
Manager for these liabilities upon Treasurer’s direction.

Home Warranty Insurance Fund (HWIF)

SICorp became the manager and underwriter of the HWIF from 1 July 2010 following the withdrawal 
of the commercial insurers in NSW. HWIF solely provides insurance for home owners for residential 
building projects where a builder defaults in their contract.

Principal Arranged Insurance (PAI)

Treasury Circular 12/11 ‘Mandatory principal arranged insurance (PAI) for all major capital works 
projects’ requires all government Agencies, other than State Owned Corporations (SOC) to undertake 
Principal Arranged Insurance through SICorp for all major capital works projects with a contract value 
greater than $10 million. This is to provide cost savings for the government capital works projects as 
well as to ensure that adequate insurance is in place with a reputable insurer and the contractor’s 
insurance arrangement remain current. The NSW Self Insurance Corporation Act 2004 was amended 
to extend cover to non-government entities for the purpose of principal arranged insurance for major 
infrastructure projects where a NSW government entity is the Principal. The NSW Self Insurance 
Corporation Amendment Bill 2013 was assented by the Parliament on 25 June 2013. The new PAI 
scheme was setup for operation in 2013-14.

PAI is not separately identified in the financial statements, but is aggregated into the TMF.

(b) Management of claims and insurance underwriting business

SICorp uses an outsource model for the management of claims and insurance underwriting business. 
The claims and underwriting management contracts were awarded to the service providers following 
a public tender. For the TMF, the contract commenced on 1 July 2010 for a six-year period up to  
30 June 2016. The contract for HWIF commenced on 1 July 2010 and expires on 30 June 2015. The 
claims and underwriting management arrangement of SICorp is shared between:

• GIO General Limited 
• Allianz Insurance Australia 
• Employers Mutual Limited 

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014
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New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

• Calliden Insurance Limited 
• QBE Insurance (Australia) Limited 

The Claims Managers and insurance agents receive a management fee for their services.

(c) Basis of Preparation

The SICorp’s financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been 
prepared on an accrual basis in accordance with:

• applicable Australian Accounting Standards (which include Australian Accounting  
 Interpretations)
• the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PFAA) and Public Finance and  
 Audit Regulation 2010 and
• the Financial Reporting Directions published in the Financial Reporting Code for NSW General  
 Government Sector Entities or issued by the Treasurer.

Financial assets are measured at “fair value through profit or loss”. Other financial statement items 
are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention.

All amounts are rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars and are expressed in Australian currency.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Acting Chief Executive, Office of Finance 
and Services (OFS) on the date the accompanying statements were signed.

(d) Statement of Compliance

SICorp’s financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include 
Australian Accounting Interpretations.

(e) Use of Estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts in the financial statements. Management continually 
evaluates its judgements and estimates in relation to assets, liabilities, revenue, and expenses. 
Management bases its judgements and estimates on historical experience and on other various factors 
it believes to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Management has identified the following critical accounting policies for which significant judgements, 
estimates, and assumptions are made.

Classification and valuation of investments

SICorp classifies its investments as fair value through profit and loss. The financial assets at fair value 
include investments in New South Wales Treasury Corporation’s (TCorp) Hour-Glass facilities and the 
managed assets portfolio. The investments within the Hour-Glass facilities are unit holdings. The fair 
value has been determined by reference to the quoted market price for similar instruments and the 
underlying value provided by Portfolio manager, TCorp. TCorp values financial assets and liabilities 
using valuation techniques, which discount cash flows to present value based on observable market 
yields for the same or equivalent securities.
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New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014

The financial assets held with TCorp are classified as non-current assets as management does not 
intend to realise them within 12 months after the reporting period. SICorp ordinarily receives the annual 
contributions from the member Agencies early in the financial year which adequately cover the current 
liabilities.

Insurance and other recoveries revenue

SICorp purchases insurance for losses above their predetermined retention levels to avoid the impact 
of financial losses associated with large claims or incidents. The retention level is set by management 
and reviewed annually as part of the renewal process. The current retentions are determined based on 
price, availability of cover, and risk tolerances. When the claims cost exceeds the excess level, the cost 
is recoverable from SICorp’s insurer.

Provision for outstanding claims

The provision for outstanding claims is actuarially determined in consultation with the Claims Managers 
for TMF, TAC, GWC, SRA/ RIC and PAI. It is measured as the best estimate of the expected future 
payments required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. 

The expected future payments are estimated on the basis of the ultimate cost of the settling of claims, 
which is affected by factors arising during the period to settlement such as normal inflation and 
“superimposed inflation”. Superimposed inflation refers to factors such as trends in court awards, for 
example increases in the level and period of compensation for injury. 

The expected future payments are then discounted to a present value at the reporting date using 
discount rates based on long term fair value of the ten year NSW Government bond yields recommended 
by TCorp. The details of rates applied are included in Note 11. 

The liability for claims includes:

• claims incurred and reported but not yet paid
• claims incurred but not yet reported; and
• claims incurred but not enough reported.

For HWIF, the provision for outstanding claims is actuarially determined in conjunction with information 
supplied by the Insurance Agents for NSW Home Warranty Insurance Fund. It is measured as the 
central estimate of the present value of the expected future payments required to settle the present 
obligation at the report date. It includes a factor for superimposed inflation and an additional risk margin 
to allow for the inherent uncertainty in the central estimate.

Estimates include claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and claims incurred but not enough reported 
(IBNER) at reporting date. The estimate of IBNR and IBNER are generally subject to a greater degree 
of uncertainty than reported claims. The expected future payments are then discounted to a present 
value at the reporting date using a long term government bond yield. Details of rates applied are 
included in Note 11.

The outstanding claims liability of Pre Managed Fund Reserve (part of the TMF) is determined from 
estimates provided by the member Agencies based on claims incurred and reported as at the reporting 
date. The list of claims estimates provided by the Agencies is vetted by the NSW Treasury Managed 
Fund manager and approved by SICorp.
For PAI, the provision for outstanding claims is actuarially determined in conjunction with various 



36 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

sources of industry benchmark data and assumptions given the very limited claims experience to date. 
It is measured as the central estimate of the present value of the expected future payments required 
to settle the present obligation at the report date. It includes an additional risk margin to allow for the 
inherent uncertainty in the central estimate.

(f) Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses, and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that:

• the amount of GST incurred by SICorp as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian  
 Taxation Office is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of an asset or as part of an item of  
 expense; and

• receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included except for Work in Progress,  
 amounts due to contractors for work in progress and advance billings.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of cash flows on a gross basis. However the GST components 
of cash flows arising from investing and financing activities which are receivable from, or payable to, the 
Australian Taxation Office are classified as operating cash flows.

(g) Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration or contribution received or receivable. 

(i) Premium Revenue

Premiums are recognised as income on a straight line basis over the period of the insured risk. 
Premiums are exclusive of taxes and duties levied.
 
Premium revenue of TMF is received from member Agencies for insurance cover from 1 July each 
year. Premium of HWIF provides insurance cover for periods up to 7 years commencing from the 
date of the insurance contract. Premium revenue of PAI is received from Agencies for principal 
arranged insurance cover for government capital projects estimated to cost $10 million or more 
from the date of the insurance contract.

(ii) Hindsight Adjustments 

TMF uses an incentive-based scheme to encourage Agencies to improve their claims performance. 
Self-insurance costs and funding for Agencies are established at the start of a fund year. After 
sufficient time has passed for claims development, the scheme applies a hindsight adjustment, 
calculated at 3 years (Interim) and 5 years (Final), based on actual claims experience. Agencies 
receive or pay the difference between the annual and hindsight premiums.

Hindsight adjustments are recognised as revenue when they can be reliably measured.

(iii) Insurance and Other Recoveries Revenue 

Insurance recoveries are recognised as revenue when it is virtually certain the recovery will be 
made. Other recoveries include recoveries of claims paid under:

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014
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• sharing agreements
• third party recoveries
• salvage and subrogation

(iv) Investment Revenue 

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement.

Investment revenue includes interest income and net realised and unrealised gains or losses from 
changes in the fair value of investments.

(v) Grants and Contributions/ Subsidies

Pursuant to the Net Assets Holding Level Policy, SICorp will make payments to or receive funding 
from the Crown Entity to maintain the required level of net assets. Further information on the policy 
is included in Note 2.c.

The payments are recognised as expenses at the earlier of when they are paid or payable. Grants 
are recognised as revenues at the earlier of when they are received or due to be received.

(h) Expenses

(i) Outwards Insurance Expense

Premiums ceded to insurers are recognised as an expense at the earlier of when they are paid 
or become payable.

(ii) Claims Expenses 

Claims expenses are recognised as expenses when incurred. Included in claims expenses are 
actuarially determined revisions to the outstanding claims provisions.

(iii) Finance Costs 

Finance costs include the unwinding of discounts for the provision of outstanding claims and 
restoration costs. The finance cost for HWIF is included in the claims expense. These are 
recognised as an expense when incurred.

(iv) Employee Arrangements

SICorp has no employees. Its work is done by staff from the Office of Finance and Services. 
SICorp reimburses the Office of Finance and Services for the staff costs incurred and recognises 
them as “Personnel Services Fees”.

(v) Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance 
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is 
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset.

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014
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SICorp as a lessee

SICorp has two commercial rental leases. They are non-cancellable leases with terms of four and 
five years respectively. A rental review is taken biannually to effective market prices.

On expiration of the leases, the rental premises are to be returned to their original condition. 
A provision for restoration is calculated based on the best estimate of the expenditure that will 
be incurred to meet the make-good obligation as at the reporting date. It takes into account the 
Consumer Price Index to project the future outlay of the make-good cost and discount it back to 
the present value using the appropriate Government bond rate which most closely approximate 
the expiry date of the leases.

The operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

(vi) Income Tax

SICorp is exempt from income tax under Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997.

(i) Assets

(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position comprise:

• deposit held at call with banks 
• investments in NSW Treasury Corporation Hour-Glass Cash Facility
• investments in money market instruments.

(ii) Deferred Acquisition Cost (HWIF) 

Costs directly attributable to the acquisition of the HWIF premium revenue are deferred by 
recognising them as an asset in the Statement of Financial Position when they can be reliably 
measured. Deferred acquisition costs are amortised systematically over the life of the insurance 
policy in line with the expected pattern of the incidence of risk. This corresponds to the earning 
pattern of premium revenue.

(iii) Acquisition of assets

The cost method of accounting is used for the initial recording of all acquisitions of assets controlled 
by SICorp. Cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other 
consideration given to acquire the asset at the time of its acquisition or construction or, where 
applicable, the amount attributed to that asset when initially recognised in accordance with the 
requirements of other Australian Accounting Standards.

Assets acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, are initially recognised as assets and 
revenues at their fair value at the date of acquisition. Fair value is the price that would be received 
to sell an asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at measurement date.

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Where payment for an item is deferred beyond normal credit terms, its cost is the cash price 
equivalent, i.e. the deferred payment amount is effectively discounted at an asset-specific rate.

(iv) Revaluation of plant and equipment

Physical non-current assets are valued in accordance with the “Valuation of Physical Non-Current 
Assets at Fair Value” Policy and Guidelines Paper (TPP 14-01). This policy adopts fair value in 
accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement.

Office furniture, equipment and computer hardware are recorded at cost. It is derived based on 
the cost plus any incidental acquisition costs. Non specialised assets with short useful lives are 
measured at depreciated historical cost, as a surrogate for fair value.  

No revaluation is undertaken on these assets as the difference between fair value in continued 
use and carrying value is immaterial.

(v) Impairment of plant and equipment

As a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units, impairment under AASB 136 Impairment 
of Assets is unlikely to arise. As plant and equipment is carried at fair value, impairment can only 
arise in the rare circumstances where the costs of disposal are material. Specifically, impairment 
is unlikely for not-for-profit entities given that AASB 136 modifies the recoverable amount test for 
non-cash generating assets of not-for-profit entities to the higher of fair value less costs of disposal 
and depreciated replacement cost, where depreciated replacement cost is also fair value.

(vi) Depreciation of plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided for on a straight line basis for all depreciable assets so as to write off the 
depreciable amount of each asset as it is consumed over its useful life. The depreciation rates 
used for 2013/14 for each class of assets are based on the following useful lives:

• office equipment: 7 years
• furniture and fittings: 5 to 10 years
• computer hardware: 4 years.

The depreciation rates remain unchanged from the previous financial year.

(vii) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets include capitalised expenditures for system development costs and computer 
software.

Intangibles are initially measured at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation. Computer software costs are amortised on a straight 
line basis over 5 years.
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(viii) Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 
not quoted in an active market. Such assets, for example premium receivable, are of short-term 
nature and to be carried at original invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial. 

The collection of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. An allowance for impairment is 
established when there is objective evidence that not all amounts due will be collectable. Bad 
debts are written off as incurred.

Short-term receivables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount 
where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(ix) Investments

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value 
through profit or loss, transaction costs. SICorp determines the classification of its financial assets 
after initial recognition and, when allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this at each financial year 
end.

• Fair value through profit or loss - SICorp subsequently measures investments classified  
 as “held for trading” or designated upon initial recognition “at fair value through profit or  
 loss” at fair value. Financial assets are classified as “held for trading” if they are acquired  
 for the purpose of selling in the near term. 

The Hour-Glass Investment Facilities - are designated at fair value through profit or loss 
using the second leg of the fair value option i.e. these financial assets are managed and 
their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with the risk management 
strategy, and information about these assets is provided internally on that basis to SICorp’s 
management.

SICorp contracts TCorp to advise on, and actively manage market, credit and liquidity risks 
in line with the Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between it and SICorp. TCorp actively 
manages and reports on the risks associated with the holding of financial instruments. 

The movement in the fair value of the Hour-Glass Investment Facilities incorporates 
distributions received as well as unrealised movements in fair value and is reported in the 
line item “investment revenue’. 

Purchases or sales of investments under contract that require delivery of the asset within the 
timeframe established by convention or regulation are recognised on the trade date i.e. the date 
the entity commits itself to purchase or sell the asset.

The fair value of investments that are traded at fair value in an active market is determined by 
reference to quoted current bid prices at the close of business on the Statement of Financial 
Position date.
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(x) Insurance and Other Recoveries Receivables

Receivables from insurance and other recoveries are actuarially determined in consultation with 
the Claims Managers. 

The amount of insurance and other recoveries receivable is equal to gross incurred cost less 
the retention limit and insurance recoveries received to date. The receivable is recognised 
when recovery is virtually certain to take place when the corresponding obligation is settled. The 
measurement of these receivables is affected by factors such as normal inflation and the discount 
rate used for discounting of future expected receipts. The rates applied are consistent with those 
used in the valuation of provisions for outstanding claims (see Note 11). 

There has not been any key assumption made around the amounts recoverable that would have 
a significant risk of causing material adjustments to the carrying amount of the receivables within 
the next annual reporting period.

(xi) Other Assets

Other assets are recognised on a cost basis.

(j) Liabilities

(i) Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to SICorp and other amounts. 
Payables are recognised initially at fair value, usually based on the transaction cost or face value. 
Short-term payables with no stated interest rate are measured at the original invoice amount 
where the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(ii) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when: SICorp has a present obligation as a result of a past event; it is 
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The liability for claims includes:

• claims incurred but not yet paid
• claims incurred but not yet reported
• claims incurred but not enough reported
• expected claims handling costs.

The liability for outstanding claims is measured as the best estimate of the present value of 
expected future payments against claims incurred at reporting date. For HWIF, it is measured at 
central estimate with an additional risk margin of fifteen per cent included to take into account the 
inherent uncertainty in the net central estimate having regard to the prevailing market environment. 
The risk margin has been set at a level that results in an overall probability of sufficiency in the 
insurance liability of 75 per cent. For PAI, it is measured at central estimate with an additional risk 
margin designed to achieve a 75 per cent probability of ultimate adequacy.
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Where there is a material effect due to the time value of money, a provision is discounted. The 
increase in the provision resulting from the passage of time is recognised in finance costs.

Under Australian Accounting Standards, the TMF, PMF, GWC, TAC and SRA/RIC schemes are 
required to adopt AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, where 
SICorp is treated as a self-insurer.
 
As HWIF provides insurance to the public, AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts is applied to 
this activity. As PAI provides principal arranged insurance to government Agencies, AASB 1023 
General Insurance Contracts is applied to this activity.

(iii) Other Provisions

Other provisions exist when SICorp has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a 
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

(iv) Liability Adequacy Test for HWIF

The liability adequacy test is performed on the HWIF insurance liabilities less deferred acquisition 
costs to ensure the carrying value of unearned premium liability is adequate, using current 
estimates of the present value of future cash flows relating to future claims. 

An additional risk margin is included to take into account the inherent uncertainty in the central 
estimate. If the assessment shows the carrying amount of the liabilities is inadequate, any deficiency 
is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income by firstly writing down the 
deferred acquisition cost. If an additional liability is required, this is recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position as an unexpired risk liability.

(k) Equity

The category accumulated funds includes all current and prior period retained funds. 

(l) Budget Amounts

The budgeted amounts are drawn from the original budgeted financial statements presented to 
Parliament in respect of the reporting period, as adjusted for section 24 of the Public Finance and Audit 
Act 1983 where there has been a transfer of functions between departments.

 
(m) Comparative Information

 
Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative information 
is disclosed in respect of the previous reporting period 30 June 2013 for all amounts reported in the 
financial statements. SICorp has changed the format of its financial statements compared to the previous 
financial year to comply with the Financial Reporting Code issued by the NSW Treasury. The notes to 
the financial statements disclose the additional information required by users of the general purpose 
financial reports. Comparative information is aligned to the new reporting format.
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(n) Changes in Accounting Policy, Including New or Revised Australian Accounting Standards 

(i) Effective for the first time in 2013-14
   

The accounting policies applied in 2013-14 are consistent with those of the previous financial year 
except as the result of the following new or revised Australian Accounting Standards that have been 
applied for the first time in 2013-14. There is no significant impact to SICorp’s financial statement.

o AASB 13 and NSW TPP 14-01 regarding fair value measurement –This standard has  
 limited impact because items carried at fair value have not needed re- measurement as  
 the result of the new standard
o AASB 119 regarding accounting for superannuation – This standard has no impact  
 because there are no employees that SICorp employs.

(ii) Issued but not yet effective 
 
The following new Australian Accounting Standards have not been applied and are not yet effective:

Accounting Standard/Interpretation Effective
• AASB 9, AASB 2010-7 and AASB 2012-6 regarding financial instruments 2014/15
• AASB 1031 Materiality 2014/15
• AASB 1055 and AASB 2013-1 regarding budgetary reporting 2014/15
• AASB 2012-3 regarding offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 2014/15
• AASB 2013-3 Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures 

for Non-Financial Assets 
2014/15

• AASB 2013-8 regarding Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Entities – Control and Structured Entities 

2014/15
2014/15

• AASB 2013-9 regarding the Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments (Parts B and C). 

2014/15
2014/15

It is considered that the implementation of these Standards will not have any material impact on SICorp’s 
financial results.

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation
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2. Expenses Excluding Losses

(a) Other Operating Expenses
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Claims expenses
New claims incurred 971,404 991,291 
Adjustment to existing outstanding claims¹ (41,935) 82,889

Outwards insurance expense 43,698 39,414 
Management fees 165,705 140,311 
Levies paid to:

Dust Diseases Board 8,944 8,674 
WorkCover Authority of NSW 19,487 21,407

Unexpired Risk Liability expense 2,564 13,503
Risk management fees 1,474 1,522 
Actuarial expenses 5,797 6,239 
Storage costs 443 416
Maintenance 1,721  1,084
Audit fees - audit of financial statements 192 188
Consultants 2,121 1,757
Contractors 880  930
Insurer administration fees 950 900 
Operating lease rental expenses 523 491
Other expenses 2,111 1,948

1,186,079 1,312,964

1 Adjustment to existing outstanding claims represent the increase/ (decrease) in provision for outstanding claims liabilities excluding 
the increase in provisions due to the unwinding of discounts during the year. The increase in the carrying amount of a provision due to 
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

(b) Depreciation and Amortisation Expense

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Depreciation
Computer hardware 53 65 
Office equipment 5 6 
Furniture and fittings 15 16 

74 87
Amortisation

Computer software 65 96 
Total depreciation and amortisation 139 183
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(c) Grant and (Subsidies) /Contribution

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Grant to the Crown Entity [expense] (920,000) (215,000)
Grant from the Crown Entity [revenue] 15,000 10,000 
Net grant (expense) / revenue (905,000) (205,000)

 
Pursuant to SICorp’s Net Assets Holding Level Policy, the Corporation will make payments to and receive 
payments from the Crown Entity to maintain the required level of net assets.

The Policy, established in March 2006 and revised in May 2013, takes into consideration the following:

• the absence of risk margin under AASB 137, and/or
• the probability of poor investment returns for the year(s), and/or
• the possibility of a deterioration in claims experience, and/or
• the impact of a major claim, either not covered by insurance protection or exhausting the insured retention  
 level.

The current policy dictates that the target assets level held by SICorp be within 105 per cent to 115 per cent 
(2013: 105 per cent to 115 per cent) of the total liabilities. The adequacy of the fund’s net assets level is 
reviewed at least annually based on the financial results as at 31 December with option of more frequent re-
view to consider any emerging issues and trends in outstanding claims liabilities and investments. Net assets 
in surplus of the required holding level are paid to the Crown Entity and net assets in deficit will be covered 
through payments from the Crown Entity.

(d) Finance Costs
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Unwinding of discounts on provision for outstanding claims
NSW Treasury Managed Fund (TMF) 300,352 284,528
Governmental Workers Compensation Account (GWC) 3,931 4,070 
Transport Accidents Compensation Fund (TAC) 11,301 9,659 
Residual Workers Compensation Liabilities of the Crown (SRA/RIC) 6,640 6,375
Home Warranty Insurance Fund (HWIF) - -

322,225 304,632
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3. Revenue

(a) Sale of Goods and Services

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Premium revenue
Premium 1,156,897 1,154,376
Hindsight adjustments¹ 240,907 124,408

Insurance and other recoveries revenue
Recoveries received 40,572 41,723
Movement in outstanding recoveries² (9,182) (40,264)

1,429,194 1,280,243 

1Hindsight adjustments for 2013-14 include workers compensation final hindsight adjustments for 2007-08 and interim hindsight 
adjustments for 2009-10. Hindsight adjustments for 2012-13 include workers compensation final hindsight adjustments for 2006-07 and 
interim hindsight adjustments for 2008-09.

2Movement in outstanding recoveries represents the increase/ (decrease) in the actuarially assessed level of insurance and other re-
coveries receivable at reporting date. 

(b) Investment Revenue

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Return on investment
Revenue from financial assets held at fair value 430,755 281,354
Gains/(losses) from financial assets held at fair value 585,754 939,504
Interest on bank accounts 20,707 2,615

1,037,216 1,223,473

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Cash at bank  270,596 261,539
TCorp Hour-Glass cash facility 52,048 325,850

322,645 587,389 

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and short 
term money market investments held at TCorp. 
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Cash assets recognised in the Statement of Financial Position are reconciled to cash at the end of the 
financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows as follows:

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Cash and cash equivalents (per statement of financial position) 322,645 587,389
Closing cash and cash equivalents (per statement of cash flows) 322,645 587,389

Refer Note 19 for details regarding credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk arising from financial 
instruments.

5. Current/ Non-Current Assets – Receivables

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Current
Premium receivable 117,039 116,685
Insurance and other recoveries receivable 38,743 42,855
Prepayments 12,204 187
Other  4,612 14

172,598 159,741 

Non-Current
Insurance and other recoveries receivable 180,696 185,774

180,696 185,774

Other receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms.
Insurance and other recoveries receivables are discounted to present value (see Note 1 (i) x).

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Present value of insurance and other recoveries 
Expected future recoveries (undiscounted) 307,897 322,240
Discount to present value (88,458) (93,611)

219,440 228,629
             

6. Financial Assets at Fair Value

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Non-current
TCorp Hour-Glass investment facility 7,164,671 6,531,305

7,164,671 6,531,305 
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At 30 June the total investments of SICorp are financial assets designated at fair value through profit and 
loss. Refer to Note 19 for further information regarding fair value measurement, credit risk, liquidity risk and 
market risk arising from financial assets at fair value.

7. Plant and Equipment

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

At 1 July
Gross carrying amount 1,177 1,177
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (1,114) (1,041)
Net carrying amount at 30 June 62 136

Reconciliation
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the reporting 
periods is set out below.

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 
Net carrying amount at start of year 136 210
Additions 13
Depreciation expense (74) (87)
Net carrying amount at end of year 62 136

 
8. Intangible Assets

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

At 1 July
Gross carrying amount 4,912 4,912
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (4,850) (4,785)
Net carrying amount at 30 June 62 127

       
Reconciliation      
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the reporting peri-
ods is set out below.

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 
Net carrying amount at start of year 127 197
Additions - 26
Amortisation expense (65) (96)
Net carrying amount at end of year 62 127
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9. Other Non-Current Assets

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Non-current
Deferred acquisition costs1 - -
Deferred restoration costs 6 13
Other 6 -

12 13 

       
1Movements of deferred acquisition cost of the HWIF   

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

At 1 July - -
Acquisition costs incurred during the year 28,383 22,609
Acquisition costs amortised during the year (1,895) (1,515)
Net deficiency write down1 (26,487) (21,094)
At 30 June - -

1Refer to Note 12 (c) for details.    

10. Payables
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

GST payable 99,233 106,722
Management fees 55,624 34,305
Commission and transition fee 3,149 2,274
Claims  7,269 3,376
Statutory fees 614 1,438
Other 4,252 2,146

170,142 150,261 

Payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 day terms.

If trade terms are not specified, payment is made no later than the end of the month following the month in 
which an invoice or a statement is received.

Under the NSW TC 11/12 ‘Payment of Accounts’ Agencies are required to pay small business suppliers with 
turnover of less than $2 million within 30 days upon receipt of invoice and pay interest on overdue amounts. 
No interest was awarded during the year for late payment.
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11. Current/ Non-Current Liabilities – Provisions

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Current
Provision for outstanding claims 969,215 1,024,362

969,215 1,024,362 

Non-Current
Provision for outstanding claims 5,659,706 5,342,886

5,659,706 5,342,886 

Reconciliation 
A reconciliation of the carrying amount of provision for outstanding claims at the beginning and end of the 
reporting periods is set out below.

TMF PAI GWC TAC SRA/RIC HWIF 2014 2013
Total Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Net carrying amount 
at start of year 5,913,667 - 73,207 204,795 123,419 52,160 6,367,248 6,014,173 

Additions 941,392 2,161 - - - 27,852 971,406 991,291 

Payments (944,344) (6,098) (6,082) (9,818) (23,677) (990,019) (1,025,737)

Actuarial (gain)/loss (19,502) 2,992 8,274 (30,320) (3,379) (41,935) 82,889 

Unwinding of  
discounts 300,349 - 3,931 11,301 6,640 - 322,221 304,632 

Closing balance 6,191,561 2,161 74,032 218,288 89,922 52,956 6,628,921 6,367,248 

The weighted average expected term to settlement from the balance date of the outstanding claims is 
estimated to be 6.5 years for TMF (2013: 6.3 years), 10.4 years for GWC (2013: 9 years), 21.2 years for TAC 
(2013: 21.3 years), 8.3 year for SRA/RIC (2013: 8 years) and 2.1 years for HWIF (2013: 2 years). 

The following average inflation rates and discount rates were used in measuring the liability for outstanding 
claims.

TMF PAI GWC TAC SRA/RIC HWIF

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

% % % % % % % % % % % %

Not later than one year

Inflation rate 2.5-4.0 2.5-40 3.3 N/A 2.9-3.0 2.5-3.1 3.0 3.1 2.9-3.0 2.5-3.5 3.6 3.6

Discount rate 5.25 5.6 2.50 N/A 5.25 5.60 5.25 5.60 5.25 5.60 2.50 2.5

Superimposed 
inflation*

0-3.0 0-3.0 0.0 N/A 0-1.5 0-2.0 2.5 2.5 1.7 1.7 1.4 1.4

Later than one year

Inflation rate 2.5-4.0 2.5-4.0 33 N/A 2.8-3.4 2.1-3.7 3.3-3.4 3.5-3.7 2.8-3.3 2.1-3.7 3.6 3.6

Discount rate 5.25 5.6 2.6-5 N/A 5.25 5.6 5.25 5.6 5.25 5.6 2.5-5 2.5-5.4

Superimposed 
inflation*

0-3.0 0-3.0 0.0 N/A 0-1.5 0-2.0 2.5 2.50 1.7 1.70 1.4 1.4

 * Dependent on payment type.
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Sensitivity Analysis 

The outstanding claims liabilities are best estimate derived from actuarial assumptions regarding future 
experience. Sensitivity analysis can be used to measure the change in the outstanding claims estimate that 
would result from a change in the assumptions. TMF is SICorp’s main insurance scheme which represents 
93% of the outstanding claims. A sensitivity analysis of the key assumption changes for the TMF and their 
impact is shown in the following table:

Variable
 

Movement in 
variable %

Net Central  
Estimate

Impact of 
Change on the 

Provision

% Impact

 $’000 $’000  
Net Central Estimate1    5,967,688   

Risk free rate2    6,579,911 612,223 10%

Discount rate +1 5,619,706     (347,982) -6%
 -1 6,364,022   396,335 7%
     
Inflation rate +1 6,392,425   424,737 7%
 -1 5,589,240     (378,448) -6%
     
Super imposed inflation rate +1 6,150,555   182,867 3%
 -1 5,792,043     (175,644) -3%

A sensitivity analysis of the key assumption changes for the worker’s compensation portfolio of the TMF 
and their impact is shown in the following table:

Variable Movement in 
variable %

Net Central 
Estimate

Impact of 
Change on the 

Provision
% Impact

 $’000 $’000  
Net Central Estimate1    3,389,769   

Risk free rate2    3,745,777     356,009 10.5%

Discount rate +1   3,175,441     (214,327) -6.3%
 -1   3,637,249     247,481 7.3%

Inflation rate +1   3,665,516     275,748 8.1%
 -1  3,147,446     (242,322) -7.1%

Superimposed inflation rate +1   3,420,380      30,612 0.9%
 -1   3,361,239      (28,530) -0.8%

1The net central estimate is inflated and discounted, net of insurance and other recoveries and includes an 
allowance for claims handling expenses.
2 Central estimate using a risk free rate discount rate.

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014



52 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

 
There are other specific assumptions made in relation to the outstanding workers compensation claims. 
Results of the sensitivity analysis are included in the following table. 

Variable Movement in 
variable %

Net Central 
Estimate

Impact of 
Change on 

the  
Provision

%  
Impact

Net Central Estimate - Outstanding  
Workers’ Compensation claims     3,389,769   
     
Non-Emergency Services - Weekly  
continuance rates1 Increase 0.5% 3,438,964 49,195 1.5%
     
Non-Emergency Services - Weekly  
Average Claim Size Increase 10% 3,451,242 61,473 1.8%
     
Non-Emergency Services - Weekly  
Average Claim Size Decrease 10% 3,328,295 (61,473) -1.8%
 
Emergency Services - Future Medically 
Discharged (MD) Claims2 Increase 10% 3,427,232 37,464 1.1%

    
Emergency Services - Future Medically 
Discharged Claims2 Decrease 10% 3,352,305 (37,464) -1.1%
     
Emergency Services - Continuance Rates 
for Non-MD Claims1 Increase 0.5% 3,448,964 59,195 1.7%
     
NSW Police - Common Law Claim Filed by 
Medically Discharge Claimants3 Decrease 15% 3,287,107 (102,662) -3.0%
     
NSW Police - Common Law Claim Filed by 
Medically Discharge Claimants3 Increase 15% 3,501,616 111,847 3.3%
     
NSW Police - Common Law Claim Filed by 
Medically Discharge Claimants3 Increase 40% 3,680,373 290,604 8.6%

1 Sensitivity tested by increasing the proportion of claimants continuing to receive weekly payments 6 
years after injury.
2 Sensitivity tested a 10% variance in the number of future medical discharge claims for Police, Fire and 
Ambulance.
3 Valuation assumes 35% of medically discharged claimants in NSW Police will ultimately file a common 
law claim. Sensitivity tested 20%, 50% and 75%.
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Uncertainty

(a) Workers’ compensation reforms

There is a high level of uncertainty surrounding the June 2012 Workers’ Compensation Reforms, which 
introduced a wide range of changes to workers’ compensation benefits in NSW. Since the introduction of the 
reforms, claims experience has reduced significantly for non-emergency services workers.

There remains significant uncertainty as to how the reforms will ultimately impact the workers compensation 
liabilities, especially given the limited post reform claims experience currently available.

 
The key uncertainties related to the June 2012 reforms are discussed below:

• Reduction in claim numbers

We have observed a significant reduction in journey claims which were eliminated by the reforms to 
the extent they do not have a real and substantial connection between the workers employment and 
injury. However, it is uncertain if this level of claims will continue as the definition of journey claims are 
currently being tested in the court system.

The reforms did not intend to eliminate other types of claims; however, there have been significant 
reductions in non-journey claims following the introduction of the reforms. These reductions are likely 
driven by a combination of Agency and claims management initiatives as well as behavioural change 
from the reforms themselves. The reduction in claims has had a flow on impact in reducing the number of 
claimants on weekly, medical and rehabilitation benefits. However, it is uncertain whether this reduction 
will be sustained in the long term, or whether the large reduction since June 2012 simply represents a 
temporary ‘honeymoon’ effect due to the reforms. Furthermore, it is likely that the remaining claimants 
are the more severely injured workers and would therefore have a higher cost.

• Access to Common Law

The June 2012 reforms did not specify any changes to common law settlements. However, changes 
in the reforms which limit periodic benefits, such as the 5 year cap on weekly benefits for claimants 
with a Whole Person Impairment (WPI) of less than 20%, may result in an increase in the utilisation of 
common law as claimants seek compensation through other avenues.

Although we have not seen an increase in claimants accessing common law benefits as a direct 
consequence of these restrictions, there have been recent increases in common law activity across the 
scheme. There remains a high degree of uncertainty as to how common law activity will emerge in the 
future.

• Funding of claimant legal fees

For all cases lodged from March 2013, claimant legal fees are to be reimbursed by an Independent 
legal Assistance Review Service (ILARS) which has been established to provide free legal advice to 
claimants. As a result, we have assumed that the TMF will no longer be liable to pay claimant legal fees. 
There remains uncertainty as to whether SICorp will be expected to contribute to the funding of ILARS.
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Regulatory changes to the June 2012 reforms
 
In late June 2014, the following changes were made to the June 2012 workers compensation reforms,  
effective immediately for claims reported prior to 1 October 2012:

• medical benefits for workers with whole person impairment (WPI) assessed between 21% to 30%  
 extended until retirement age;

• • access to hearing aids, prostheses, home and vehicle modifications and related treatment extended  
 until retirement age; 

• • workers injured in the 12 months before retirement age will have the same entitlements as those who  
 were injured at or after retirement age;

• • workers continue to be eligible for weekly benefits until a disputed work capacity assessment has  
 been resolved; and

• • clarification of the entitlement to a ‘second surgery’ period for workers where the initial surgery 
 requires a second surgery falling outside 12 month medical cap.

These changes represent a scaling back in some respects of the 2012 reforms. Allowances have been made 
for these changes. However, given the changes have only been in effect for a short period of time, there is 
significant uncertainty around the impact of these changes and whether or not there will be further changes 
or scaling back of the June 2012 reforms.

(b) NSW Police liabilities

• Reductions in medical discharge activity

Officers in the NSW Police force which have been medically discharged are typically claimants with 
psychological injuries on long term benefits.

The number of medically discharged claimants on benefits decreased following the introduction of 
the Police Blue Ribbon Insurance (PBRI) scheme in late 2011, which replaced the Police Death and 
Disability scheme (2005). Recent levels of medical discharge activity are positive but there remains 
uncertainty as to whether this reduction is sustainable in the long term.

• Access to Common Law

There has been a significant deterioration in Police’s common law experience since June 2012, driven 
by the number of common law claims filed by medically discharged officers with psychological injuries. 
Common law settlements include past and future economic loss for injured officers and have an average 
settlement size of around $400,000.

A key assumption in the actuarial analysis is that 35% of all medically discharged claimants will ultimately 
file common law claims.

However, as there remains a large pool of medically discharged claimants who have not yet commenced 
the common law process, there is a significant risk that these costs will increase further.
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12. Current/ Non-Current Liabilities – Other
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Current
Unearned premiums 35,379 22,327

35,379 22,327 

Non-Current
Unearned premiums - HWIF 127,545 96,199
Restoration costs 121 121
Unexpired risk liability 48,276 45,712

175,942 142,032 

a) Reconciliation of unearned premiums

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of unearned premiums at the beginning and end of the reporting 
periods is set out below.

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 
Net carrying amount at start of year 118,526 81,477 
Premiums received in advance 3,529 1,154
Deferral of premiums written in current year 66,667 53,155 
Premiums earned during the year (25,799) (17,260)
Net carrying amount at end of year 162,924 118,526 

b) Reconciliation of restoration cost

A reconciliation of the carrying amount of restoration cost at the beginning and end of the reporting periods 
is set out below.

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Year ended 30 June 
Net carrying amount at start of year 121 119
Addition - -
Reversal of surplus provisions (3) (1)
Unwinding of discounts 3 3 
Net carrying amount at end of year 121 121

SICorp occupies a property that has a provision requiring SICorp to restore the premises to its original condi-
tion at the conclusion of the lease. A restoration provision is recognised at the commencement of the lease. 
The lease contract for Level 17, 201 Elizabeth Street Sydney NSW 2000 was renewed in 2013 and expires 
on 8 May 2017. The lease contract for Level 18, 201 Elizabeth Street Sydney NSW 2000 will expire on 31 
July 2015.
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c) Reconciliation of unexpired risk liability

The unexpired risk liability arises from the administration of HWIF. At balance date, SICorp recognises a 
liability in respect of outstanding claims and assesses the adequacy of its unearned premium liability. As 
required under AASB 1023 General Insurance Contracts, a Liability Adequacy Test (LAT) is undertaken to 
determine the adequacy of the unearned premium liability against current estimates of the present value of 
the expected future cash flows relating to future claims arising from the rights and obligations under current 
insurance contracts. Any deficiency is first written down against the deferred acquisition costs (DAC). The 
remaining deficiency is recognised as an unexpired risk liability. It represents the extent that the unearned 
premium liability is insufficient to cover expected future claims.

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

At 1 July 45,712 32,209 
LAT deficiency for the period 29,051 34,597
Less LAT deficiency written off against DAC (26,487) (21,094)
At 30 June 48,276 45,712 

Liability adequacy test

The LAT assesses whether the net unearned premium liability less any related deferred acquisition costs 
is sufficient to cover future claims costs. As at the reporting date, the LAT identified a deficit of $74.8 mil-
lion (2013: $66.8 million). The deficit, after deducting the opening balance in the unexpired risk liability, is 
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. 

The calculation is shown below:
2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Unearned premium liability 158,242 117,373 
Deferred acquisition costs* (26,487) (21,094)

131,754 96,279

Central estimate of present value of expected 
future cashflows arising from future claims 179,581 141,813
Risk Margin 26,937  21,272
Premium liability provision 206,518 163,085 

Net Deficiency 74,764 66,806 

* Refer Note 9 Other Non-current Assets - Deferred Acquisition Costs.

The premium liability provision represents the actuarial assessment of future claims expenses. The mean 
term to settlement of the undiscounted premium liability is 5.9 years (2013: 6.0 years). 

 

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014



57FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

Deficiency recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income:

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Gross movement in unexpired risk liability (2,564) (13,503)
Write down of deferred acquisition costs* (26,487) (21,094)
Total deficiency recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (29,051) (34,597)

* Refer Note 9 Other Non-current Assets - Deferred Acquisition Costs.

The probability of adequacy was 75 per cent (2013: 75 per cent). 

13. Reconciliation of Cash Flows from Operating Activities to Net Result

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Net cash flows from operating activities (217,132) 401,436 
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation (139) (183)
Unrealised gain/(loss) in investments 585,754 939,504 
Finance cost (322,225) (304,632)
Actuarial gain/(loss) on claims expense 31,942 (82,889)
Increase in outstanding claims 28,610 34,445 
Increase in unearned premiums (44,398) (37,049)
(Decrease)/Increase in payables (19,880) (15,493)
Increase in other liabilities (2,564) (13,503)
Increase in provision for restoration - (2)
(Decrease)/increase in receivables 16,969 (205,892)
(Decrease)/increase in insurance and other recoveries receivable (9,189) (40,144)
Decrease in other assets (1) (13)

Net result 47,747 675,587
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14. Statement of Comprehensive Income of Funds

 TMF GWC TAC SRA/RIC HWIF 2014
Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Expenses excluding losses
Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses 1,145,347 3,107 8,363 (30,094) 59,356 1,186,079 
Personnel services fees 3,922 - - - 1,307 5,229 

Depreciation and amortisation 139 - - - - 139 
Grants and subsidies 920,000 - - - - 920,000 
Finance costs 300,352 3,931 11,301 6,640 - 322,225 
Total Expenses excluding losses 2,369,760 7,038 19,664 (23,454) 60,663 2,433,672 

Revenue
Sale of goods and services 1,402,431 (215) 47 1,102 25,829 1,429,194 
Investment revenue 983,361 9,321 28,231 14,869 1,434 1,037,216 
Grants and contributions - - 10,000 5,000 - 15,000 
Other revenue 8 - - - 0 8 
Total Revenue 2,385,800 9,106 38,278 20,971 27,263 2,481,418 

Net Result 16,040 2,067 18,614 44,425 (33,400) 47,747 

Other comprehensive income - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income 16,040 2,067 18,614 44,425 (33,400) 47,747 
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14.    Statement of Comprehensive Income of Funds (continued)

 TMF GWC TAC SRA/RIC HWIF 2013
Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

Expenses excluding losses
Operating Expenses
Other operating expenses 1,191,393 (182) 31,131 11,231 79,391 1,312,964 
Personnel services fees 4,069 - - - 1,289 5,358 
Depreciation and amortisation 183 - - - - 183 
Grants and subsidies 155,000 - - 60,000 - 215,000 
Finance costs 284,528 4,070 9,659 6,375 - 304,632 
Total Expenses excluding 
losses 1,635,173 3,888 40,790 77,606 80,680 1,838,137 

Revenue
Sale of goods and services 1,260,913 1,705 106 259 17,260 1,280,243 
Investment revenue 1,139,918 12,843 38,518 30,671 1,523 1,223,473 
Grants and contributions 10,000 - - - - 10,000 
Other revenue 8 - - - - 8 
Total Revenue 2,410,839 14,548 38,624 30,930 18,783 2,513,724 

Net Result 775,666 10,660 (2,166) (46,676) (61,897) 675,587 

Other comprehensive income - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income 775,666 10,660 (2,166) (46,676) (61,897) 675,587 

 

New South Wales Self Insurance Corporation

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2014



60 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2014

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

15. Statement of Financial Position for Funds

 TMF GWC TAC SRA/RIC HWIF 2014
Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 259,807 3,065 3,003 3,041 53,728 322,645 
Receivables 163,690 228 22 969 7,690 172,598 
Total Current Assets 423,497 3,293 3,025 4,009 61,418 495,243 

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 164,687 2,689 742 12,578 - 180,696 
Financial assets at fair value 6,732,354 71,361 240,675 120,281 - 7,164,671 
Plant and Equipment 62 - - - - 62 
Intangible assets 62 - - - - 62 
Other 12 - - - - 12 
Total Non-Current Assets 6,897,178 74,050 241,417 132,859 - 7,345,504 
Total Assets 7,320,675 77,343 244,442 136,868 61,418 7,840,747 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 163,311 4 2 18 6,808 170,142 
Provisions 925,362 5,955 6,413 10,533 20,952 969,215 
Other 4,683 - - - 30,697 35,379 
Total Current Liabilities 1,093,355 5,959 6,415 10,550 58,456 1,174,736 

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 5,268,360 68,077 211,875 79,390 32,004 5,659,706 
Other 121 - - - 175,821 175,942 
Total Non-Current  
Liabilities 5,268,481 68,077 211,875 79,390 207,825 5,835,648 

Total Liabilities 6,361,837 74,036 218,290 89,940 266,281 7,010,384 

Net Assets 958,839 3,308 26,152 46,928 (204,863) 830,364 

EQUITY
Balance as at 1 July 2013 942,799 1,241 7,538 2,501 (171,462) 782,617 
Net Result for the year 16,040 2,067 18,614 44,425 (33,400) 47,747 
Accumulated funds 958,839 3,308 26,152 46,926 (204,862) 830,364 
Total Equity 958,839 3,308 26,152 46,926 (204,862) 830,364 
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15.     Statement of Financial Position for Funds (continued)

 TMF GWC TAC SRA/RIC HWIF 2013
Total

$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 537,841 2,981 2,890 2,958 40,719 587,389 
Receivables 151,032 292 21 940 7,456 159,741 
Total Current Assets 688,873 3,273 2,911 3,898 48,175 747,130 

Non-Current Assets
Receivables 169,563 2,923 696 12,592 - 185,774 
Financial assets at fair value 6,144,831 68,267 208,751 109,456 - 6,531,305 
Plant and Equipment 136 - - - - 136 
Intangible assets 127 - - - - 127 
Other 13 - - - - 13 
Total Non-Current Assets 6,314,670 71,190 209,447 122,048 - 6,717,355 
Total Assets 7,003,543 74,463 212,358 125,946 48,175 7,464,485 

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 145,803 15 25 26 4,392 150,261 
Provisions 974,588 6,104 6,050 14,038 23,582 1,024,362 
Other 1,153 - - - 21,174 22,327 
Total Current Liabilities 1,121,544 6,119 6,075 14,064 49,148 1,196,950 

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 4,939,079 67,103 198,745 109,381 28,578 5,342,886 
Other 121 - - - 141,911 142,032 
Total Non-Current Liabilities 4,939,200 67,103 198,745 109,381 170,489 5,484,918 
Total Liabilities 6,060,744 73,222 204,820 123,445 219,637 6,681,868 

Net Assets 942,799 1,241 7,538 2,501 (171,462) 782,617 

EQUITY
Balance as at 1 July 2012 167,133 (9,419) 9,704 49,177 (109,565) 107,030 
Net Result for the year 775,666 10,660 (2,166) (46,676) (61,897) 675,587 
Accumulated funds 942,799 1,241 7,538 2,501 (171,462) 782,617 
Total Equity 942,799 1,241 7,538 2,501 (171,462) 782,617 
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16. Commitments for expenditures - Operating Lease Commitments

SICorp has two commercial property leases. The leases have a one year and three year life respectively. 
There are no restrictions placed upon the lessee by entering into these leases.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases as at 30 June are as follows:

2014 2013
$’000 $’000

Future non-cancellable operating lease rentals not provided for and payable:
Not later than one year 587 446 
Later than one year and not later than five years 832 1,077
Total (including GST) 1,419 1,523 

Operating lease commitments are inclusive of GST. The total amount above includes input tax credits of 
$129,000 (2013: $138,000) that are expected to be recovered from the Australian Taxation Office.

17. Budget Review

Net result

Actual net result for SICorp as at 30 June 2014 is a surplus of $48 million compared to the budgeted surplus 
of $286 million, an unfavourable variance of $238 million. This unfavourable result is mainly due to the 
following major items:

• Net payment of $905 million to the Consolidated Fund related to the 2013-14 Net Asset Holding  
 Level assessment
• Increase in investment income of $497 million due to strong performance of the TCorp TMF facility  
 of 14.94% YTD compared to a budget assumption of 5.7% for the same period.
• Improvement in the actual claims experience mainly attributable to the reforms to the workers  
 compensation scheme introduced in June 2012 in New South Wales. The Workers Compensation  
 Legislation Amendment Act 2012 introduced a number of changes to Workers Compensation  
 benefits. The new laws change the way Workers Compensation benefits claims are assessed and  
 paid.

The strong investment returns achieved mainly in the first half of 2013-14 enabled SICorp to make a net 
contribution of $905 million to the Crown Entity.

Assets and Liabilities

SICorp’s total assets as at 30 June 2014 were $7,841 million compared to the original budget of  
$8,026 million. The decrease is mainly due to the net payment of $905 million to the Consolidated Fund 
offset by the strong performance of the TCorp TMF facility of 14.93% which outperformed the benchmark 
and full year budget of 5.7%. The strategic asset allocation has remained stable throughout the financial year 
with a growth/defensive split of 83%/17% for the TMF facility and 70%/30% for the other investment funds.

Total liabilities were $7,010 million which is slightly higher than the original budget of $6,962 million mainly 
due to the increase in the provision for outstanding claims liabilities attributable to the change in the discount 
rate assumption from 5.6% to 5.25%.
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Cash Flows

The actual cashflow from operating activities was $632 million lower than budget mainly due to the net 
payment of $905 million to the Consolidated Fund related to the 2013-14 Net Asset Holding Level assessment 
which was not anticipated in the budget. Cash and equivalents held as at 30 June 2014 are $225 million 
lower than budget.

18. Contingent Liabilities

Claims Management Incentive Fees

The claims management contracts between SICorp and its claims providers are performance based 
providing incentives to encourage Claims Managers to work with their Agency clients to improve the Fund 
performance. Incentives are based on achieving service standards and improvements in outcomes. These 
measurements are performed by SICorp’s actuary when sufficient time has passed for the results to be 
accurate and it is therefore impractical to estimate these fees in advance.

19. Financial Instruments

SICorp’s principal financial instruments are outlined below. These financial instruments arise directly 
from SICorp’s operations or are required to finance those operations. SICorp does not enter into financial 
instruments, including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

SICorp’s main risks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with SICorp’s objectives, 
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative and qualitative disclosures are 
included through these financial statements.

Management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of risk management, and reviews 
and sets policies for managing each of these risks. Risk management policies are in place to establish 
frameworks and processes that identify and analyse the risks faced by SICorp, set risk limits and controls, 
and monitor risks.

The main purpose of these financial instruments is to derive income and investment gains which are used 
to fund insurance liabilities.

Note 1 details the key accounting policies and methods which include the recognition criteria, the basis of 
measurement and the income and expenses recognition for each class of financial instrument.
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Financial Instrument categories

 Note Category 2014 2013
   $’000 $’000
Financial assets     
Cash and cash equivalents 4 N/A    322,645    587,389 
Financial assets at fair value 6 At fair value through profit and loss  

(designated as such upon initial recog-
nition)   7,164,671   6,531,305 

Receivables (i) 5 Receivables measured at amortised 
cost    121,651    116,699 

     
Financial liabilities     

Payables (ii) 10 Payables measured at amortised cost      70,294      42,100 

(i) Excludes statutory receivables and prepayments (i.e. not within scope of AASB 7)
(ii) Excludes statutory payables and unearned revenue (i.e. not within scope of AASB 7)

Risk management

The activities of SICorp expose it to a variety of financial risks. These are: 
o Market risks

(i) interest rate risk
(ii) currency risk
(iii) other price risk

o Credit risk 
o Liquidity risk

SICorp contracts TCorp, the State’s central financing authority which has recognised expertise in the 
management of financial risks, to advise on, and actively manage these risks in line with the Memorandum 
of Understanding (MoU) between it and SICorp. TCorp actively manages and reports on the risks associated 
with the holding of financial instruments. 

The MoU is updated annually to include changes in market conditions and/or management’s direction and 
clearly sets out investment management objectives, restrictions and establish performance benchmarks. 

Proposed changes to the MoU must go through a consultative process within the forum of the Crown Debt 
and Asset Management Committees. Members of the Committees include representatives from both TCorp 
and the NSW Treasury. The NSW Treasury’s representatives on these committees include staff that are 
qualified and experienced in corporate finance.
 
TCorp manages and monitors the financial risks within the boundaries of its established Board policies, 
legislative requirements, management guidelines and MoU. TCorp’s operational risks are mitigated through:

 comprehensive and detailed risk management policies
 detailed controls over the security, integrity and accuracy of all key systems
 clear and appropriate reporting lines
 qualified and experienced personnel
 a Risk Management & Compliance function
 regular internal audits
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Market risks

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. SICorp’s exposures to market risk are primarily through price risks associated 
with the movement in the unit price of the Hour-Glass Investment facilities. 

The effects on SICorp’s operating result due to reasonably possible changes in risk variables are outlined 
in the information below, for interest rate risk and other price risk. A reasonably possible change in each 
risk variable has been determined after taking into account the economic environment in which SICorp 
operates and the time frame for the assessment (i.e. until the end of the next annual reporting period). The 
sensitivity analysis is based on risk exposures in existence at the reporting date. The analysis is performed 
on the same basis for 2013. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates.

Exposure to interest rate risk arises primarily through SICorp’s investments in the TCorp Hour Glass Cash 
Facilities and cash deposits held at other financial institutions. TCorp manages the portfolio to agreed 
benchmarks to minimise the fair value interest rate risk.

The following table provides the sensitivity analysis of interest rate risk affecting applicable financial assets 
on the operating result and equity of SICorp. A reasonably possible change of +/- 0.5% is used, consist-
ent with current trends in interest rates. The basis will be reviewed annually and amended where there is a 
structural change in the level of interest rate volatility. 
 

$’000
 Carrying 

amount
Profit  
-0.5%

Equity
-0.5%

Profit
0.5%

Equity
0.5%

2014      
Cash and cash equivalents 270,596 (1,353) - 1,353 - 

2013      
Cash and cash equivalents 261,539 (1,308) - 1,308 - 

(ii) Currency risk

SICorp has some foreign currency risk exposure from its investments in the TCorp Hour-Glass investment 
facilities. The Hour-Glass investments in the emerging market, indexed and actively managed international 
share sector are denominated in currencies other than Australian Dollars. SICorp also has an exposure to 
Global Listed Real Estate Securities which are passively hedged with a 50% target level. The agreement 
between SICorp and TCorp requires the manager to effectively review the currency exposure when it arises.

TCorp considers currency risk within the context of its overall investment strategy.

As at 30 June 2014, SICorp has no transactional or structural currency exposures (2013: Nil). 

(iii) Other price risk

Exposure to “other price risk” primarily arises through the investment in the TCorp Hour Glass Investment 
facilities which are held for strategic rather than trading purposes. SICorp has no direct equity investments. 
SICorp holds units in the following Hour-Glass investment facilities:
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Facility Investment sectors Investment 
horizon

2014
$’000

2013
$’000

Hour-Glass Cash 
facility Cash, money market instruments Up to 1.5 

years      26,644     311,569 

Hour-Glass Strategic 
Cash facility Cash, money market instruments 1.5 years to  

3 years      25,404      14,281 

Treasury Managed 
Fund facility

Cash, money market instruments, 
Australian Bonds, Listed and 
Unlisted Property, Australian, 
International and Emerging market 
shares, and Unlisted Infrastructure

Long term 6,732,354 6,144,831

Hour-Glass Long term 
growth facility

Cash, money market instruments, 
Australian Bonds, Listed Property, 
Australian, International and Emerg-
ing Markets Shares, Multi-assets

7 years and  
over     432,317     386,474 

The unit price of each facility is equal to the total fair value of the net assets held by the facility divided by 
the total number of units on issue for the facility. Unit prices are calculated and published daily. The unit 
prices used to value the balances on the monthly Hour-Glass statements are redemption prices.

TCorp, which has been rated AAA by Standard & Poors, acts as trustee for each of the above facilities and 
is required to act in the best interest of the unit holders and to administer the trusts in accordance with the 
trust deeds. As trustee, TCorp has appointed external managers to manage the performance and risks of 
each facility in accordance with a mandate agreed by the parties. TCorp also act as manager for the Cash 
Facility. A significant portion of the administration of the facilities is outsourced to an external custodian.

Investments in the Hour-Glass facilities limit the SICorp’s exposure to risk as this allows diversification 
across a pool of funds with different investment horizons.

The TCorp Hour-Glass investment facilities are designated at fair value through profit or loss and therefore 
any change in unit price impacts directly on profit (rather than equity). TCorp provides sensitivity analysis 
information for each of the facilities using historically based volatility information collected over a ten year 
period, quoted at two standard deviations (i.e. 95% probability). A reasonably possible change is based on 
the percentage change in unit price multiplied by the redemption price as at 30 June each year for each 
facility.
 
Hour-Glass Change in unit price Impact on surplus/(deficit)
Investment facility 2014 2013 2014 2013
 % % $’000 $’000
Cash Facility +/- 1.0 +/- 1.0  +/- $266  +/- $3,116 
Strategic Cash Facility +/- 1.0 +/- 1.0  +/- $254  +/- $143 
Treasury Managed Fund +/- 18.0 +/- 18.0  +/- $1,211,824  +/- $1,106,070 
Long Term Growth Facility +/- 15.0 +/- 15.0  +/- $64,848  +/- $57,971

 
SICorp has no exposure to commodity price risk.
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Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of SICorp, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, receivables 
and financial assets at fair value. SICorp’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential default of the counter 
party, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments at balance date. 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash investment in TCorp Hour-Glass cash facility and bank balances with other financial 
institutions. Interest is earned on daily bank balances.

Receivables – trade debtors

All trade debtors are recognised as amounts receivable at the reporting date. The collection of trade debtors 
is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Procedures as established in the Treasurer’s Directions are followed to 
recover outstanding amounts, including letters of demand. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are 
written off. An allowance for impairment is raised when there is objective evidence that the entity will not be 
able to collect all amounts due. No interest is earned on trade debtors. The average credit period on sales, 
unless otherwise agreed, is 30 days.

SICorp does not receive any collateral for receivables.
 
The receivables that are past due or considered impaired are included in the table below.
 Total

$’000
Past due but not impaired

$’000
Considered 

impaired
  < 3 months 3 - 6 

months
> 6 months $’000

2014      
Receivables 2,051 - 99 1,952 - 

2013
Receivables 2,943 227 3 2,713 - 

The ageing analysis excludes statutory receivables, as these are not within the scope of AASB 7.

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value include investments in TCorp’s Hour-Glass facilities and the managed assets 
portfolio. The investments within the Hour-Glass facilities are unit holdings, and as such, do not give rise to 
credit risk. Credit risk within the Hour-Glass facilities is managed by ensuring there is a wide spread of risks, 
achieved by engaging a spread of funds managers in a specific asset sector. TCorp, as trustee, contracts 
with these managers and requires in their mandates a series of controls over the concentration and credit 
quality of assets.

Liquidity risk

The liquidity of SICorp’s investments is assured by the high-credit nature of the fixed interest investments 
within the TCorp Hour-Glass facilities. All Hour-Glass share and property investments are required to be 
listed on a recognised stock exchange with the exception of the unlisted property and unlisted infrastructure 
investments which only accounts for 8.71 per cent and 2 per cent of the Treasury Managed Fund Hour-Glass 
facility as at the reporting date.
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In accordance with the MoU, TCorp is required to take market turnover and liquidity risk into account at the 
time of constructing SICorp’s investment asset allocation. When TCorp implements strategic asset allocation, 
the transition plan is in place to exit portfolio in tranches to minimise the liquidity risk.

During the current and prior years, there were no defaults on payables. No assets have been pledged as 
collateral. SICorp’s exposure to liquidity risk is deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data and the 
current assessment of risk.

The payables are recognised for amounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether 
or not invoiced. Amounts owing to suppliers (which are unsecured) are settled in accordance with the policy 
set out in Treasury Circular 11/12. If trade terms are not specified, payment is made no later than the end of 
the month following the month in which an invoice or a statement is received. Treasury Circular 11/12 allows 
the Minister to award interest for late payment. There has been no interest awarded for late payment to date.
 
The table below summarises the maturity profile of SICorp’s financial liabilities.
 

Weighted 
average 
effective

Nominal 
amount

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
Fixed 

Interest 
Rate

Variable
Interest 

Rate

Non-
interest 
bearing

< 1 Year 1-5 Years >5 Years

% $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2014

Payables - 70,294 - - 70,294 70,294 - -
2013

Payables - 45,586 - - 45,586 43,276 2,310 -

Fair value recognised in the Statement of Financial Position

SICorp uses the following hierarchy for disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation tech-
nique:
• Level 1 – derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets / liabilities
• Level 2 – derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable directly or indirectly
• Level 3 – derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset / liability not based on  
 observable market data (unobservable inputs)

Level 1  Level 2 Level 3  Total 
 $’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
2013-14
Financial assets at fair value
TCorp Hour-Glass investment facilities - 7,164,671 - 7,164,671
 - 7,164,671 - 7,164,671

2012-13
Financial assets at fair value
TCorp Hour-Glass investment facilities - 6,531,305 - 6,531,305
 - 6,531,305 - 6,531,305

There were no transfers between the levels during the year ended 30 June 2014 (2013: Nil). The value of 
the Hour-Glass Investments is based on the SICorp’s share of the value of the underlying assets of the 
facility, based on the market value. All of the Hour-Glass facilities are valued using “redemption” pricing.
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20. Events after the Reporting Period

There are no events after the reporting period ended at 30 June 2014.

End of Audited Financial Statements
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Appendices

Accounts Payable Performance 
For the year ended 30 June 2014

Since SICorp’s transfer to the Office of Finance and Services, responsibility for the management of finance 
has moved from the Crown Asset and Liability Management branch (CALM) in NSW Treasury (OFM) to 
finance officers providing financial account services within SICorp on behalf of the Corporate Finance Office 
of the Office of Finance and Services

The payment process requires verification and approval by delegated SICorp officers before payment is 
processed.

SICorp aims to ensure that all accounts are paid promptly in accordance with the requirements of the Public 
Finance and Audit Regulation 2010, the Annual Reports legislation and the Treasurer’s Directions.

The following table reports on the total time taken by SICorp to administer payments.

Value of outstanding invoices paid by age at the end of each quarter

Quarter Less than 30
days overdue

$

Between 30
and 60 days

overdue

$

Between 60
and 90 days

overdue

$

More than 90
days overdue

$
Sep-13  75,882,046  3,836,283  421,232  206,570 
Dec-13  44,263,100  4,139,937  1,402,311  1,061,029 
Mar-14  55,323,518  740,647  181,429  83,236 
Jun-14  75,766,395  260,299  801,228  16,440 

Accounts paid on time during each quarter

Quarter Total Accounts Paid on Time Total Amount
Target % Actuals % $ Paid ($)

By Number By Value
Sep-13 90% 92% 94%  75,882,046  80,346,132 
Dec-13 90% 88% 87%  44,263,100  50,866,377 
Mar-14 90% 83% 98%  55,323,518  56,328,830 
Jun-14 90% 86% 99%  75,766,395  76,844,360 

During the year, the target for total accounts paid on time was set at 90 per cent. Payment performances in
terms of number are just bellow the target benchmark. This performance is expected to improve and meet 
targets in the 2014-15 year as a result of the new finance system implemented to manage SICorp’s ac-
counts.



71

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14



72

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14



73

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14



74

NSW Self Insurance Corporation  - Annual Report 2013 - 14

Expenditure on Consultants
Expenditure on Consultants 1 July 2013 - 30 June 2014

Consultants costing $50,000 or more

Information Technology Project
Amount  

(excl. GST)

Yaris Pty Ltd Legal Panel portal implementation and operation $202,581

IBM Australia Ltd Cognos upgrade $71,835

Subtotal $274,416

Finance and Accounting / Tax

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Auditing Services $192,252

Subtotal $192,252

Management Services

Dynamiq Pty Ltd Annual Service Provision $196,225

Ally Group Pty Ltd TMF Legal Panel Implementation $604,991

Subtotal $ 801,216

Consultants costing less than $50,000

Various Home Warranty Insurance Fund Projects $479,362

Various Other Projects $373,321

Subtotal $852,683

Total $2,120,567
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Credit Card Certification
In accordance with the Treasurer’s Directions 205.01-205.08, SICorp certifies that corporate credit card 
use by officers of SICorp has been in accordance with the established government requirements, Premier’s 
Memoranda and Treasurer’s Directions.

SICorp has three credit cards on issue with a total limit of $22,000.

Government Information (Public Access) Act 

During 2013-14 SICorp processed 138 access applications under the Government Information (Public 
Access) Act 2009 (GIPA Act). Of these, 68 applications were granted access in full and 68 applications were 
granted partial access.
 
Of the 68 granted partial access, 33 were refused because the applications involved the disclosure of 
information referred to in Schedule 1 of the GIPA Act, that is, information for which there is conclusive 
presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure (legal professional privilege – 33 applications). 
Of the 68 applications granted partial access, 40 were refused because of other public interest considerations 
listed in the table under section 14 of the GIPA Act (individual rights – 32 applications, responsible and 
effective government – 5 applications, law enforcement and security – 3 applications). 

Information about making information access requests can be found on the SICorp website www.sicorp.nsw.
gov.au under Right to Information (GIPA).

Government information (Public Access) (GIPA) Act reporting

Table A - Number of applications by type of applicant and outcome*

Media Members of 
Parliament

Private 
sector 

business

Not for 
profit or 

community 
groups

Members of 
the public 

(application 
by legal 

Reps

Members of 
the public 

(other)

Access granted in full 0 0 0 0 19 98
Access granted in part 1 0 1 0 14 56
Access refused in full 0 0 0 0 0 1
Information not held 0 0 0 0 0 0
Information already 
available 0 0 0 0 0 0

Refuse to deal with 
application 0 0 0 0 0 0

Refuse to confirm /deny 
whether information is 
held

0 0 0 0 0 0

Application withdrawn 2 0 0 0 0 2
*More than one decision can be made in respect of a particular access application. If so, a recording is 
made in relation to each decision. This also applies to Table B.
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Table B - Number of applications by type of application and outcome
Personal information 

applications*
Access applications 
(other than personal 

information applications)

Access applications 
that are partly personal 
information applications 

and partly other
Access granted in full 117 0 0
Access granted in part 71 0 1
Access refused in full 1 0 0
Information not held 0 0 0
Information already 
available 0 0 0

Refuse to deal with 
application 0 0 0

Refuse to confirm /deny 
whether information is 
held

0 0 0

Application withdrawn 2 1 1

* A personal information application is an access application for personal information (as defined in 
clause 4 of Schedule 4 to the Act) about the applicant (the applicant being an individual).

Table C - Invalid applications

Reason for invalidity No. of applications
Application does not comply with formal requirements (section 41 of the Act) 9
Application is for excluded information of the Agency (section 43 of the Act) 0
Application contravenes restraint order (section 110 of the Act) 0
Total number of invalid applications received 9
Invalid applications that subsequently became valid applications 8

Table D - Conclusive presumption of overriding public interest against disclosure: matters listed 
in Schedule 1 of the Act

Number of times 
consideration used*

Overriding secrecy laws 0
Cabinet information 1
Executive Council information 0
Contempt 0
Legal professional privilege 33
Excluded information 0
Documents affecting law enforcement and public safety 0
Transport safety 0
Adoption 0
Care and protection of children 0
Ministerial code of conduct 0
Aboriginal and environmental heritage 0
* More than one public interest consideration may apply in relation to a particular access application 
and, if so, each such consideration is to be recorded (but only once per application). This also applies in 
relation to Table E.



77

NSW Self Insurance Corporation - Annual Report 2013 - 14

Table E - Other public interest considerations against disclosure: matters listed in table to 
section 14 of the Act

Number of occasions 
when application not 

successful
Responsible and effective government 5
Law enforcement and security 3
Individual rights, judicial processes and natural justice 32
Business interests of Agencies and other persons 0
Environment, culture, economy and general matters 0
Secrecy provisions 0
Exempt documents under interstate Freedom of Information legislation 0

Table F - Timeliness

Number of applications
Decided within the statutory timeframe (20 days plus any extensions) 120
Decided after 35 days (by agreement with applicant) 1
Not decided within time (deemed refusal) 7
Total 128

Table G - Number of applications reviewed under Part 5 of the Act (by type of review and 
outcome)

Decision 
varied

Decision 
upheld Total

Internal review 0 1 1
Review by Information Commissioner* 0 0 0
Internal review following recommendation under section 93 of 
the Act 0 1 1

Review by ADT 0 0 0
Total 0 2 2
* The Information Commissioner does not have the authority to vary decisions, but can make 
recommendations to the original decision-maker. The data in this case indicates that a recommendation 
to vary or uphold the original decision has been made by the Information Commissioner.

Table H - Applications for review under Part 5 of the Act (by type of applicant)

Number of applications 
for review

Applications by access applicants 1
Applications by persons to whom information the subject of access 
application relates (see section 54 of the Act) 0

Proactive Release Program 
Under section 7(3) of the GIPA Act, SICorp is required to review its program for the release of government 
information at least every 12 months to identify the kind of information it holds that should, in the public 
interest, be made publicly available and can be without imposing unreasonable costs to the Agency.

During 2013-14 SICorp undertook such a review and proactively released onto its website statistics on 
workers compensation claims against TMF.
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Rating valid until

July 2015

DEXUS Funds Management Limited as RE for the
DOT Commercial Trust & Perron Investments P/L
achieved 4.5 star NABERS Energy Base Building rating for

201 Elizabeth Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

This building uses 19.3% GreenPower

NABERS is a national initiative managed by the New South Wales Government - Office of Environment and
Heritage on behalf of the Commonwealth, State and Territory Governments. This NABERS Rating is based on
12 months of operational energy use. More stars indicate better energy performance and lower emissions of
greenhouse gases.

www.nabers.gov.au
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Rating valid until

July 2015

DEXUS Funds Management Limited as RE for the
DOT Commercial Trust & Perron Investments P/L
achieved 3 star NABERS Water rating for

201 Elizabeth Street
SYDNEY NSW 2000

NABERS is a national initiative managed by the New South Wales Government - Office of Environment and
Heritage on behalf of the Commonwealth, State and Territory Governments. This NABERS Rating is based on
12 months of operational water use. More stars indicate better water efficiency.

www.nabers.gov.au
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Energy Management

Sustainable energy management principles are applied in line with the Office of Finance and Services 
Energy Management Plan. SICorp commits to sustainable energy management principles and achieving 
savings in energy usage. SICorp occupies floor space at 201 Elizabeth Street Sydney. The current NABERS 
energy rating for the building is four and half stars with the purchase of Green Power and a three-star rating 
for water usage.

Internet and Intranet Access
SICorp’s primary means of sharing information with staff, Agencies and the NSW community is through the 
following electronic communication channels:
• SICorp website www.sicorp.nsw.gov.au
• HWIF website www.homewarranty.nsw.gov.au

The public-facing pages on SICorp’s website meet the AA Standards of the Web Content Accessibility 
Guidelines (WCAG) 2.0 and are monitored monthly to ensure continued compliance. The public facing pages 
on the Home Warranty Insurance Fund website are close to meeting the AA Standard and are planned to be 
compliant by 31 December 2014.

Publications

Publications in 2013-14

TMF Bulletin - July 2013 Social Media Policy - July 2013
TMF Bulletin - September 2013 Travel Cover Overview - September 2013
TMF Bulletin - October 2013 Actuarial Consultation Report - March 2014
TMF Bulletin - November 2013
TMF Bulletin - February 2014
TMF Bulletin - June 2014

Legislation
SICorp performs its functions under the NSW Self Insurance Corporation Act 2004 (SICorp Act) and other 
legislation relevant to its roles, including the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983. 

There were no changes to the NSW Self Insurance Corporation Act 2004 during 2013-14, although the 
25 June 2013 amendments to the SICorp Act concerning principal arranged construction insurance and 
director/officer indemnities have now taken effect.

The Home Warranty Insurance Fund was established in 2010 through section 12A of the SICorp Act. The 
SICorp Act provides that it is a function of SICorp to carry on the business of providing home warranty 
insurance for building work done in New South Wales that requires such insurance under the Home Building 
Act 1989.

The Public Sector Employment and Management (NSW Self Insurance Corporation) Order 2013 transferred 
SICorp from NSW Treasury to the Office of Finance and Services from 1 July 2013.

Privacy Management Plan
SICorp staff adhered to the Office of Finance and Services Privacy Management Plan during 2013-14. 
There were no privacy breaches reported at SICorp during this time.



81

NSW Self Insurance Corporation - Annual Report 2013 - 14

Public Interest Disclosure
During 2013-14, no SICorp officials made public interest disclosures.

Because SICorp staff are OFS employees, SICorp adopted and adhered to the OFS Fraud and Corruption 
Internal Reporting Policy. All staff are advised of this policy by means of the Code of Conduct and intranet 
access. Changes within the Treasury and Finance cluster in 2014 require changes to be made to OFS public 
interest disclosure processes and policies. Revised information and education and training of staff, senior 
management and nominated disclosure officers is planned to be undertaken during 2014-15.

Reducing Paper Consumption and Waste
To reduce paper consumption and waste, SICorp uses email and our internet and intranet sites to disseminate 
information and communicate with our stakeholders. Staff are encouraged to print electronic documents 
only when hard copies are necessary.

The equipment used to print and photocopy documents has the capacity to produce double-sided copies 
and staff are encouraged to use this as the default option.

Resource Recovery 
Recycling receptacles for paper are provided near each workstation. Receptacles to collect and recycle 
other materials (such as plastics, glass and aluminium) are located in kitchens and other common areas.

Using Recycled Material
SICorp uses recycled products when it is cost-effective to do so. Where possible, SICorp purchases items 
with recycled content (including toners, paper and some stationery items).

Waste Reduction and Purchasing Policy
Recycling principles continue to be applied at SICorp, with the purchase and disposal of our consumable 
paper stock and printer cartridges. Bins for recycling and kitchen waste are strategically positioned throughout 
the office.

SICorp Staff 
From 1 July 2013, SICorp staff were employed by OFS to carry out SICorp’s functions. Statutory reporting 
in relation to SICorp staff is therefore reported in the annual report of OFS. During 2013-14 SICorp’s staff 
adhered to OFS policies and procedures to which all staff have access  via the SICorp website and the OFS 
intranet.

Staff Statistics

2011-12 2012-13 2013-14*
M F T M F T M F T

Branch Director (SES Level 2) 1 0 1 1 0 1 1 0 1
Technical Officer Grade 2 6 0 6 7 0 7 7 0 7
Grade 11-12 11 3 14 11 3 14 10 3 13
Grade 9-10 5 5 10 3 5 8 3 5 8
Grade 7-8 3 2 5 4 1 5 3 3 6
Grade 5-6 3 1 4 3 1 4 3 1 4

Grade 3-4 1 2 2 1 2 3 1 2 3

TOTALS 30 13 43 30 12 42 28 14 42

*Note: As a result of the transfer of SICorp from NSW Treasury to OFS, 3 FTE for Legal and 2 FTE for Finance are provided by the OFS 
Corporate office. These staff will be declared in the OFS Annual Report.
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Overseas Visits

United Kingdom and Singapore

Steve Hunt, Director of SICorp, travelled to London and Singapore during the period 18 to 31 of May 2014.

Mr Hunt travelled overseas to represent the NSW Government’s self-insurance arrangements. He met with 
major international reinsurers in London, the traditional financial capital of the world’s largest and most 
influential reinsurers. Singapore is becoming a major financial hub in the Asia Pacific region with a number 
of reinsurers who write TMF business now located there. The direct contact with reinsurers provides the 
opportunity to emphasise that the NSW TMF remains a good insurance risk.

SICorp covered all the costs associated with Mr Hunt’s travel and accommodation.

TMF Community 

The organisations and people that, in one way or another, support the success of TMF and its member 
Agencies are known collectively as the TMF community. In addition to the TMF Agency Advisory Council, 
the TMF community includes the TMF communities of practice that aim to promote best practice across the 
sector.

During 2013–14 the TMF communities of practice included the:
• Safety Risk Management and Injury Management Coalition (SRM&IM Coalition)
• Health Promotion Network (a sub-group of the SRM&IM Coalition)
• Injury Management Group (a sub-group of the SRM&IM Coalition)
• Mid-sized Agency Forum (MIDAS Forum)
• Public Sector Risk Management Association (PSRMA)
• Enterprise Risk Management Group (ERM Group)
• Public Sector Rehabilitation Coordinators Network (PSRCN).

The Public Service Commission (PSC) has produced a guideline for the structure and governance of 
communities of practice across the public sector. As the structure of the PSRMA did not meet the guideline  
requirements, for this reason SICorp no longer provides secretarial support to the PSRMA. A new Risk 
Management community of practice conforming to the PSC guideline will be developed in 2014-15.

2013 TMF Awards for Excellence Winners

Frameworks and Systems – Work Health & Safety Award
NSW Trade & Investment, People Learning and Culture - integrated safety management system.
 
Frameworks and Systems – Risk Management Award
Northern Sydney Local Health District, Mental Health Drug and Alcohol - Enterprise risk management 
platform.
 
Frameworks and Systems – Injury Management Award
NSW State Emergency Service, Work Health and Safety - Implementation of SafeHold.
 
PSRMA Initiative – Work Health and Safety & People’s Choice Award
NSW Police Force, Operational Safety and Skills Command - D ring thigh holster.
 
PSRMA Initiative – Operational Risk Management
The Sydney Children’s Hospitals Network - Three dimensions of organisational excellence.
 
PSRMA Initiative – Injury Management Award
NSW Police Force, Health and Fitness Unit - Predicting and remediating police officers at risk of injury with 
a targeted fitness reconditioning program.
 
Leadership Award
Narayan Mukkavilli & Emma Wallhead - NSW Treasury, Risk Management Toolkit for Public Sector Agencies.
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Memberships

SICorp Advisory Board

Non-Executive Members Executive Members

David Plumb
(Chair)

Steve Hunt
(Director of SICorp)

Vicki Allen
(Member)

John Hubby
(Acting CEO of the Office of Finance and Services)

Brian Greig
(Member)

Non-Executive Members Profiles

David Plumb is a non-executive director and business adviser with 28 years’ experience within the funds 
management, insurance, superannuation, financial planning, and property sectors. David has served in 
non-executive and executive director capacities on a number of boards and has served on (and chaired) 
a number of committees. David is currently a non-executive director for BT Financial Group’s (Westpac’s) 
superannuation and investment trustee entities and an external compliance committee member for Blackrock 
and Ascalon Capital Management. 

Vicki Allen is a non-executive and executive director and consultant with an executive career of over 25 
years in the financial services and property sectors. She has strong governance experience across a range 
of regulated entities, and broad-based business skills. Vicki is Chair of Bridge Housing Limited, deputy chair 
of Mirvac Funds Management Limited, and a non-executive director of the Motor Trades Association of 
Australia (MTAA) Superannuation Fund.

Brian Greig is an experienced professional services firm partner who has previously provided audit and 
advisory services to global and national financial services companies over 34 years. He has led the insurance 
practice of KPMG in Australia and Switzerland and has been a member of KPMG’s global insurance leadership 
team. Brian’s board experience includes deputy chair and member of the board of KPMG Australia; chair of 
its audit and professional indemnity insurance committees; member of the board of Park Indemnity Limited 
and chair of its audit, risk management and compliance committee and compensation committee. Brian is 
also a non-executive director of SIMS Foundation Limited.

Treasury Managed Fund Agency Advisory Council

Members

Peter Riordan (Chair) 
Department of Education and Communities 

Steve Hunt
NSW SICorp

Leeza Dobbie
Office of Finance and Services

Aidan Hughes
NSW Police

Terry Natsia
Sydney Water

Meryl McCracken
Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal (IPART)

Michele Murphy 
NSW Health

Darren Husdell
NSW Fire and Rescue
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Audit and Risk Committee

Members

Dr Des Pearson AO  
(Independent Chair)

Jon Tyers  
(Independent Member)

Brian Greig  
(Independent Member)

Service Level Agreement Groups

Members - Workers Compensation Portfolio 1 
Allianz

Brad Cole (Chair)
SICorp 

Megan Clark
WorkCover NSW

Patrick Varlet
Department of Education and Communities

Steven Mullins
NSW Trade and Investment

Terry Natsia / Laura Andrews
Sydney Water

Mark Pittman / Magaly Laurie / Maria Guresse
Allianz

Suzanne Reid / Priya Burgess
Office of Finance and Services

Members - Workers Compensation Portfolio 2 
EML

John Angelakis (Chair)
SICorp 

Joseph Vella / Marcus Stevenson
NSW Police

Andrew McGarity / Debbie Bilton
Fire and Rescue NSW

Steven Mullins
NSW Trade and Investment

Michele Murphy
Ministry of Health

Tamara Sprod / James Au / Scott Niven
Employers Mutual

Cathy Tuffy
Sydney Local Health District
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Members - Workers Compensation Portfolio 3 
QBE

John Angelakis (Chair)
SICorp 

Joseph Vella / Marcus Stevenson
NSW Police

Andrew McGarity / Debbie Bilton
Fire and Rescue NSW

Steven Mullins
NSW Trade and Investment

Michele Murphy
Ministry of Health

Tamara Sprod / James Au / Scott Niven
Employers Mutual

Cathy Tuffy
Sydney Local Health District

Members - General Claims Portfolio GIO

Paul Davies (Chair)
SICorp 

Lyndsay Brooker / Jane Allen
Ageing, Disability and Home Care

Katalin Erdelyi
Attorney General and Justice

Chris Condon / Genevieve Hambly
NSW Police

Michele Murphy
Ministry of Health

Harry Lan
Office of Finance and Services

Margy Halliday
Sydney Local Health District

Margaret Farang / Luisa Sirianni
Roads and Maritime

Chris Pasterfield / Chris Reid / Val Scully
Department of Education and Communities

Brad Tait / Fahrena Mitchelson / Brent Rogers
GIO

Terry Natsia / Laura Andrews
Sydney Water
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Statutory Reporting Requirements Index

Access details 5 Highlights for 2013-14 14
Aims and Objectives 7 Legal change 80
Annual Report - costs and details 5 Legislative change 80
Auditor-General’s opinion 24 Letter of Submission to Minister Inside Front
Charter 5 Major assets N/A
Clients and Stakeholders 11 Management and Activities 14
Code of conduct 7 Management and Structure 13
Commitment to Service 11 Mission 6
Committees 83 Organisation chart 5
Consumer response 10 Overseas visits 82
Contact details 5 Performance indicators 9
Corporate objectives 7 Principal Officers 13
Credit Card Certification 75 Privacy Management Plan 80
Economic/other factors affecting 
achievement N/A Promotion N/A

Energy management policy 80 Report on operation 14
Expenditure on consultants 74 Research and development N/A
Financial Statements 27 Risk management 16
Funds granted to non-government 
bodies N/A Staff Statistics 81

Government Access to Information 
(GIPA) 75 Waste Reduction 81

Publications 80

Websites Referenced in this Report
www.sicorp.nsw.gov.au www.homewarranty.nsw.gov.au

Acronyms and Abbreviations

AAL Allianz Australia Insurance Limited PML Probable Maximum Loss
AAC Agency Advisory Council PMO Program Management Office

EML Employers Mutual Limited PSRMA Public Sector Risk Management Asso-
ciation

GIO GIO General Limited RFT Request for Tender

GIPA Government Information  
(Public Access) Act SICorp NSW Self Insurance Corporation

GWC Governmental Workers Compensation 
Account SLA Service Level Agreement

HWIF Home Warranty Insurance Fund SOC State Owned Corporation

IBNER Incurred but not enough reported SRM&IM Safety and Risk Management and Injury 
Management Coalition

IBNR Incurred but not reported TAC Transport Accident Compensation Fund

IPART Independent Pricing and Regulatory  
Tribunal TC Treasury Circular

ICT Information, Communication and 
Technology TMF Treasury Managed Fund

LHD Local Health District TPP Treasury Policy Paper
LPG Legal Panel Gateway UTS University of Technology Sydney
OFS Office of Finance and Services VMO Visiting Medical Officer
PAI Principal Arranged Insurance






